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ATEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
DrWONG ChiYing, Anthony

LAl Kam Wah

LIU Sau Lai

NG Chi Ming (Appointed on 3rd September 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
HO Wai Chi, Paul

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Ka Ho

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

e Annual Report FE R4 09/ 10

EEE

HITEE

FIEER (2E)

FIEE (BT EREFREE)
BETEEL

Ripg
REAR-_T-FTFNA=-HEZE)

BYFHTEE
RS
BRI B
il

ENERES
MRS (ZEEERE)
PRA%BE

2R

¥MZzEE
EL(ZESEE)
Bk

eyl

iR

ERBRAT
ERLBESRITER LA
ERRT(BE)BRAA
BITRTT (BR) BRAF

BB
BRBAKESAMERA
B G



PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM1 |

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3, 6th Floor

Hopeful Factory Centre

[0 Wo Shing Street

Fo Tan

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS (IN BERMUDA)
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

| I Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, HM08

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRARS (IN HONG KONG)

Union Registrars Limited

|8/F, Fook Lee Commercial Centre
Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1047

WEBSITE
http://www.nhh.com.hk

Corporate Information
ATEH

DNHEBARER
U E A BERERA A

AMBREE
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM| |
Bermuda

ERAREER
TEEE MY

e

R

N K

REH105%

BEIEDRD

RS

BOBFREARE (RERE)
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

I'l Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, HMO08

Bermuda

RABFEESE RESB)
BABAERARAT
BB 1T858

R ESEAEER D

1812

R R5R
1047

it

http://www.nhh.com.hk

Annual Report FE {4 09/ 10



Directors and Senior Management
EERREEEAS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 63, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He
is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's
business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the

Group. He has more than 40 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 61, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a
co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and
administration of the Group. He has more than 40 years’ experience in the plastics
industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional

Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG ChiYing, Anthony, aged 54, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is
in charge of the R&D Centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities
and opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity,
Dr Wong was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and
Manufacturing Systems Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a
B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D degree in chemical engineering and is also a
Chartered Engineer; Chartered Scientist, a corporate member of The Institution of
Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He
had worked for two multinational chemical companies prior to taking up a lecturer

post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wabh, aged 59, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr Lai
holds a Master of Arts degree and is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
the Law Society of England and Wales and the Law Society of Australian Capital
Territory. He has been practicing law for over 26 years. He is also an Associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, a member of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Manager of three
secondary schools and one primary school in Hong Kong, and Member of the Panel

of Adjudicators of the Control of Obscene and Indecent Articles Ordinance.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 52, is responsible for personnel and office
administration of the Group. She joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has more than 25 years’ experience in

plastic materials trading.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Contd)

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 45, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department of the Group. He is responsible for developing of plastics
colouration, compounding technology and key accounts in the Greater China
market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University’s predecessor). He also holds a
Master of Engineering Management degree from the University of Technology,
Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in
early 1998 and has over 21 vyears' experience in plastic colouration and plastic

injection moulding techniques.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 59, is the sole proprietor of Paul W.C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in
Social Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 60, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic
Material Ltd. He has more than 30 years' experience in plastic trading. He was
formerly a lecturer of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic
University. He is now the President of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers
Association, President of Hong Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Vice President of
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre and Chairman of Hong Kong Brands
Protection Alliance. He has also been awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation

for Community Service.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERREEEAS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 40, is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of a reputable real estate company. Mr Ching is responsible for its overall financial
management and corporate finance. He had been the Vice President - Finance for
Hong Kong and China Gas Investment Limited, a subsidiary of the Hong Kong and
China Gas Company Limited (B &R EERBR A A]), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and was responsible for the overall financial
management of its joint ventures in the People's Republic of China. Mr Ching had
also been executive director, finance director, company secretary and qualified
accountant of the Company. He has more than |8 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from the Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006 respectively.
Mr Ching is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member

of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 55, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd,, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited and Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Dongguan) Co,, Ltd, and is responsible for the overall business operations of
the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ben Ng holds a Bachelor degree in
Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
("CUHK"). He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director of the
above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 29 years' experience in
plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ben Ng has held several key
positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales

and product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 39, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing
in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over |6 years'

experience in sales & marketing.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Contd)

Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 37, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of
Hong Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder
and a Certified Financial Risk Manager. He has over 4 vears’ experience in auditing,
finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial and treasury management

of the Group.

Mr NG Hok Lim, Steve, aged 56, is the General Manager of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Co., Ltd. and Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co., Ltd., and is responsible
for Sales, Marketing, Product Development of Colour Masterbatches and Functional
Masterbatches for plastic industries in Qingdao plus the overall management of the
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing operations. He holds a Master degree of Philosophy in Organic
Chemistry and a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr Ng joined the Group in August 2007. Prior to joining the Group, Mr
Ng has over 30 years' experience in business management and held several senior
positions in various Multinational Companies and a China Local Company for sales
and marketing of Specialties Chemicals plus New Product Development in Asia

Pacific Regions including Greater China Region.

Mr YIP Chun Fai, aged 47, is the General Manger of Hong Kong Colour
Technology Ltd., Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Ltd. and Xiamen Ngai Hing
Hong Plastic Materials Co., Ltd.. He is responsible for the Group’s Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches in Southern China plus the overall
management of the Ngai Hing operations in Dongguan and Xiamen. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Science from The University of Hong Kong and Master degree in
Business & Administration from the University of Technology, Sydney. Mr Yip joined
the Group in 2009 and has over 25 years' experience in the petroleum, chemical
and textile industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Yip has held several senior
positions in various multinational companies for Business Management, Sales,
Marketing, New Business Development, Merger & Acquisition and Supply Chain

Management in Asia Pacific regions.
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Chairman’s Statement
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| am pleased to announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended
30th June 2010. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of
HK$1,271,463,000 (2009: HK$1,129,930,000) and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$28,352,000 (2009: Loss of HK$20,757,000). Earnings
per share for the year were HK7.68 cents (2009: Loss of HK5.62 cents). The Board
of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents (2009: Nil)
per share. Together with the interim dividend of HKI.0 cent (2009: Nil) per share,
the total dividend payment for the year under review is HK3.0 cents per share

(2009: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Driven by strong consumption power resulting from the large-scale economic
stimulus package introduced by the Central Government of Mainland China, the
manufacturing industry and the economy as a whole began to recover. Plastics, a raw
material used in most industries, saw a rise in demand, in turn creating good growth
momentum within the plastic manufacturing industry. Sales from the domestic
market surged by over 30% and with the Southern China and Hong Kong export
market stabilising, such factors drove both selling price and sales volume upward,
with overall turnover increasing by over 2% to HK$1,271,463,000. During the
period, the Group’s pricing and inventory policies were underpinned by stable raw
material prices. Hence, gross profit recorded strong growth, exceeding 45% to
HK$ 161,074,000 and gross profit margin rose by nearly three percentage points to
12.7%.

Throughout the period in which the Group was affected by the global financial
turmoil, it actively implemented cost control measures, enhanced inventory control
and accounts receivable management and improved operating efficiency. Such
measures have continued to reap benefits, boosting the profitability of the Group as
the market further grows. The Group has also managed to turn around from a loss
position with profit attributable to equity holders of the Company recorded at
HK$28,352,000.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

XERRE

AANBRBERBITERAR ([RARF] K
(510N (%MKEID@I_Y—EEﬁH
SHHLFE REREE - FEELEZL
BEEEE1,271,463,0008 T (ZETAF
1,129,930,000% 7t) + 2 &) X B 15 % 7l B
28,352,000 T (Z T N & : B B
20,757,000/ 7T) © BRAFA7.68% L (=
TNE : BI85.628) - %%AEL@/%
RERSFR2.0BI (ZSTNF : 8) o
ﬁ%@@iﬁﬁ%i#%%%ﬁ%o%mc;
TTHNF &) BEFARFREAER30
BIL(ZZEZNF - E) o

EBEE

BE & R B R R BT E B AR SRS B
£ BEANRREDEHEE )  THEALER
REXSHAD  BREARBHIEZRM
MOBRTE LR REBREERBER
HMIERAHE - BEHRN - SERPENET
GHREEBEABEREABS 2T MEE
EiERABLEAMSEBTE  AEENE
DEERFEEEE LA BREEBERAR
A2+ #1,271,463,0008 7T - BN - R
MHEREBE BNAEENTEERFER
B REEARIERBAEAZNTRE
161,074,000 7T - EFX FAZI=EAS
HERHTZBE-

TEREGREBT AN AEERBHITR
AR - MET BRI RE S ERFK
FooRhRAEENG  WERRETR L
BREZERY  HRAEENAFEN - K
FE AREEBAR  HBLRERER
F3%28,352,0008 7T ©

Annual Report FE % 09/10



Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Contd)

The three core business segments of the Group achieved remarkable growth over
last year. The plastics trading business has grown noticeably with turnover recording
a year-on-year rise of 17% to HK$772,802,000. Moreover, increasing demand for
consumer products in Mainland China has led to an escalation in plastic usage,
including food packaging and home electric appliance products. Combined with the
Group's efforts at expanding distributorship by adding more brands from Asia, such
as Taiwan and Japan, this has enabled the Group to provide a more diverse product
mix for the customers. In addition, stable material prices has also allowed the Group
to better manage selling prices of its products, avoid over-stocking and lower
inventory cost, consequently resulting in an increase in gross profit margin by five
percentage point compared to same period last year, and registering a profit before

taxation of HK$13,829,000.

The colorant and compounded plastic resin business, which also benefited from a
rise in sales in Mainland China, recorded turnover growth of 8%. Profit before
taxation rose by around four folds year on year to approximately HK$16,556,000
and gross profit margin also increased by three percentage points. Growth in both
turnover and profit was mainly attributable to a rise in sales proportion in Mainland
China and the Group’s strategic move to relocate part of its production lines from
Mainland China to its Taipo plant in Hong Kong. This has facilitated the compounding
and manufacturing of colorant and compounded plastic resin products which are
used in producing electronic products. Such action has resulted in profit

contributions of approximately HK$2,000,000.

During the year, the engineering plastics business reported steady growth with
turnover increasing by 3.6%, gross profit margin achieving modest growth of one
percentage point and profit before taxation rising by 39% year on year to
approximately HK$20,570,000. The Group also sought to bolster its R&D
department, developing more than 80 tailor-made plastic products for customers
during the vear including engineering plastics for toys and household products. These
products, which have higher profit margins, satisfied demand from the Mainland
China market. In combination with a drop in the cost of raw materials for products,
including petrochemical products, the profitability of this business segment has

improved.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2010, the Group believes that the active Mainland China economy
will continue to create opportunities for the plastics industry. Steadier international
oil prices have led to relatively stable supply of petrochemical products. Thus, the
management expects a stable growth in the price of raw materials used in plastic
materials, enabling a satisfactory operating environment. The Group will focus on the

Mainland China market and seek to actively expand its market share.

In Mainland China, the new sales office in Tianjin commenced operation in June. It is
mainly involved in developing the plastics trading business in Northern China,
including Three Northeast Provinces, targeting customers that require high quality
imported plastics products. In addition, the Group plans to upgrade its sales office in
Chengdu, a key city in Western China, to expand its customer base and enhance
customer services. It also intends to extend the sales network in other key cities like
Chongging and Wuhan, to further develop within China, increase its market share

and expand income sources.

In Hong Kong, the new Taipo plant, which occupies over 90,000 square feet, will be
completed and commence trial run by the end of this year. Production lines will be
increased from five to six and are expected to begin operation by early next year.
The Group will then capitalise on a preferential tariff treatment offered under the
Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (“CEPA"),

which is designed to save on tariffs.

Our professional management team, possessing significant industry experience, has
led the Group’s charge away from the shadow of the global financial crisis. In
achieving this, the team established enhanced manufacturing and sales systems with
higher production efficiency. With the subsequent adjustment in inventory policy and
improvements in fiscal management, a solid foundation has now been laid for the

long-term healthy development of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

PROSPECTS (Contd)

In the coming year, the Group will actively expand its presence within the huge
Mainland China market. To achieve this, innovative products will be continuously
launched to secure new customers. The Group will also adopt versatile business
strategies to address market dictates. The management believes that with its
substantial experience and extensive business network in Mainland China, such
attributes will allow it to seize enormous opportunities that are emerging from
Mainland China’s rapid economic development, thus driving the Group's businesses

to new heights and delivering generous returns to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and
banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2010, the Group has
available aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$390,401,000, of which
approximately HK$274,124,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate
guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see notes 16, |7 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements). The Group's cash and bank balances as at 30th June 2010
amounted to approximately HK$82,589,000. The Group'’s gearing ratio as at 30th June
2010 was approximately 63%, based on the total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$252,531,000, together with obligations under finance leases of approximately
HK$693,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$402,603,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company’s contingent liabilities
are disclosed in notes 32 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated
in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its

exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETE®mE
FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK (Contd) SMEREE ()
At 30th June 2010, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward REBEETRZINERR - REEFIME
contracts in order to manage the Group’s exposure in foreign currencies from its BHEHN RZT-SFSA=TH  RiHA
operations as follows: ZEBERD 2 EEMT
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars HERBTTUEART 2,123,550 1,107,600
Sell US dollars for HK dollars HEXRTUABART 382,200 195,000
Sell HK dollars for EURO HEBTABART 9,265 —

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2010, the Group had approximately 657 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is
geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an
incentive to motivate its employees to increase their contribution to the Group.The
Group also provides social or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund
scheme (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the location of such

employees.

APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to the Group’s customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my
fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group
will, as always, with prudence used its best endeavour to strive for its long-term
development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more

promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2010
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 30th June 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating segment is set out

in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 38.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share,
totalling HK$3,692,000, which was paid on 8th April 2010.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per

ordinary share, totalling HK$7,384,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are

set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2010, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$71,506,000 (2009: HK$68,409,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (i) the realisable value
of the company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities

and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is set out on page 142.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme

(the "New Scheme”) and terminated the old share option scheme. Under the terms
of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite Directors and
employees of the Group to take up options (the “Share Options”) to subscribe for

shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

(i)  Purpose
The New Scheme is designed to give Directors and employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries an equity interest in the Company in order
to enhance long-term shareholder value. The granting of Share Options will
also help the Company attract and motivate individuals with experience and

ability and to reward individuals for past and future performance.

(i)  Qualifying participants

Any employee including any Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(iii)  Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share
Option may be granted under the new Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The
total number of shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other
option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any

[2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

ERE

ARAIZBRER_ZE-_F+-FRAKENT
BT B ([FERER 2] - YRREUS
TERRENE - RENERETE 2B R
G EERBERFELAEECEFTRES
BRI RBARR ARG 2 BRE ((FERE]) -

BT EIFEMT

(i) BH
HMEREFIAEEANALAZANBELR
RIZEEREER THD  EAQAER
RARABEREEZAS - LREB
ERBREMRRZIAL  EMREE
IR EE -

(i) BEKBHEE
ARRIEMBARZEMEER (BRE
WEF) -

(iii) R REEHE

B B B RA QR H AR
BB EIPA B RRTTE 2B -
RTABRTZENBEATBRETHEE
BIRHZBZ=T - mBBILR A
RIS R AR S5 B A A B X L R A
RAFHTNERY - REHERETS
A 817 2 B fn 48 80 7336,920,000% -
BEREAARACETBRAAD Z
+

RERT_EAR BRAERZEE
R B R 8 R AL A A R B AT
ETEmE s BIE (BRETRERAAR
TR BB MERTRGERTZR
HEE  TEEBERTRNARZAE
DL

N

Annual Report FE % 09/10 a



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

SHARE OPTIONS (Contd)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire
more than 10 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the Share
Option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect when
a letter comprising acceptance of the Share Option duly signed by the grantee

is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s (the “Stock Exchange") daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, (i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever

is the greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between
5th December 2002 and 4th December 2012 to offer the grant of an option
to any qualifying participants.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) BRE @
Details of the movements of Share Options outstanding as at 30th June 2010 are as RENBRETERL  BRER-_F—FF
follows: NAZTERFAZEHNT -
Number of Share Options
RREZRGHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise  Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year the year
RiAA TEHR &R ) ERRH FROE FRRL EX
Other continuous
contract employees
BHENANER
[3th February 2008 I3th February 2009 HK$0.78 500,000 — — — 500,000
ZE3)E to 12th February 2014 078 BT
ZAt=H “EENFATZRE
“F-RECZAtZR
[3th February 2008 I3th February 2010 HKS0.78 500000 — — — 500000
ZE3)E to 12th February 2014 078 T
ZRt=H Z2-TF-R+ZHE
“F-RECAtZR
[3th February 2008 I3th February 201 HKS0.78 500000 — — — 500,000
ZE3)E to 12th February 2014 078 BT
ZRt=H Z3——F-f+ZHE
“F-RE-AtIR
1,500,000 — — — 1,500,000
No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year. REAFER L STEEMERE
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2010 are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
DrWONG ChiYing, Anthony

Mr LAl Kam Wah

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr NG Chi Ming (Appointed on 3rd September 2010)

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr CHAN Dit Lung *

Mr CHING Yu Lung *

Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

In accordance with clause 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr NG Chi Ming, who
was appointed after the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25th
November 2009, shall hold office until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
("AGM") and shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS (Cont'd)
Mr HUI Sai Chung, Mr LAl Kam Wah and Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul retire by rotation in

accordance with clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and
long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive
industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives
essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an
equity component that is designed to align the long-term interest of management
with those of shareholders. The remuneration package comprises of annual

directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee

meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2010, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief
executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the "Model Code") contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules") were

as follows:

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2010

EERBETRAEBREAAAHEEM
HBEEREARES 2 BER/TAR

RZZ-ZFXA=1H  ARAIGEFRE
BITHRABRARARZEMMEEEZE (FER
B RAE G ([EHBER) EXVE) &
MALR R BRI EELRREELRHE
{EBIE3526FE 2 22 ) - HBEARN RE
RIBRRAR  IRBHZAMES LTHAA
([ETHRA) 2 ETRAEFETEEZHE
ESF A (MBS A)) ERAR A RE R FTRR
EOT

R-ZBE-ZBFAA=1HZXAGEREE
0.1078 T2 EEBK

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BEEREZADARGHE
Personal Corporate Family Other
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests
EEnE PN £ EEER XERED Hi i
Mr HUI Sai Chung IR A Long positions 2% 14971,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FENEE  Long positions 1 a 17,484,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BHEEZ T Long positions HE z 1,423,000 — — (c)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

Notes:

(@)

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited ("Good Benefit”), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In
addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai
Chung. Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 30,834 and 5 class A non-

convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow
Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In addition, 2,082,000

shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI
Kwok Kwong. Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible

redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held

196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2010, are as follows:

Report of the Directors
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EERBRETRAERRAAAHEEM
HBREERARES 2BER/FKXA

(%)

Pat

(a)

(b)

ZE B m R 2 196,721,5008 T3 B Good
Benefit Limited([Good Benefit]) # & °
Ever Win Limited ([Ever Win]) # % Good
Benefit A2+ RAE—#zm (i) < It
§h + 6,000,0000% f& 13 B Ever WinE & # 5 -

Ever WinZ i1 17T 2 & AR 750,000
RAFHEEERE - FHRIARERBESS
AlEE B Ever Win AREEETT LR A EE
B 5L A%30,8340% K 5%

B F 2 196,721,50008 T3
Good Benefiti & ° Evergrow Company
Limited ([Evergrow]) ¥ & Good Benefit &
S <2 W+ R B — B %
(P & (c) o Bk 4N+ 2,082,000 A& 17 £
EvergrowH B F -

> Parax
7%

Evergrow® i FE 1070 2 & # % £950,000
BREFEREERE HEXEESHE
Evergrow AGE M BT 7] 512 0] B RE L%
30,8230 °

% F 7 Good Benefit(® =
NAZTBEHEBARDAI96,721, 5ooﬂxﬂx1ﬁ)
BAZEGERDT

Number Percentage

Name of Directors of shares of holding
EEpA RAEE BREAL
Mr HUI Sai Chung R L 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong SRR 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBI L 80 0.8%
Others Hil 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

As at 30th June 2010, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred shares in
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an option granted to Ngai Hing

(International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred shares.

EERBETRAEBREAAAHEEM
HBEERARES 2 BER/FKXA
(%)

RZZB-—ZEXA=TH TIHESHEREZE
RHERARBREEELCROER - M&Z A AT
£ #% T Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited
ARE i ERRERTKRD 2 BAE -

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

REERERELROEAR
Personal Other
Name of Directors interests interests
BEsns BARER HipiE s
Mr HUI Sai Chung ERues A 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong PRI R 200,000 50,000 (ii)
Notes: BiaE

(i) These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of
the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at
30th June 2010, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company and associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND / OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Contd)

Save as disclosed under the section headed "“Share Options” above,

(@) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of

the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2010, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been
notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

chief executives as disclosed above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major

suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier 22%

Five largest suppliers combined 60%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
is less than 10% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2010 and

therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had

an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors
and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu
Lung. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and
financial reporting matters including a review of the annual financial statements for

the year ended 30th June 2010 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the

Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors

=
EEERE
AUDITOR B
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires AUBBRREAERRKEGHMERIE
and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. %o mBMEnERENCERBEERE
H% o
On behalf of the Board REEZE
HUI Sai Chung IE
Chairman Frit iR
Hong Kong, 28th September 2010 R _E-TFAAZTNH
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management
throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises
on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance

principles and structures.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the "Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout year ended 30th June 2010, except for deviation of the

code provisions A.2.1 and A4.| of the Code as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Board has not appointed an individual to the
post of chief executive officer. The roles of the chief executive officer have been
performed collectively by all the executive directors, including the chairman, of the
Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all
executive directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the
Company's policies and strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review
the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an individual to chief

executive officer when it thinks appropriate.

Code Provision A4.| stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Company's independent non-executive
directors were not appointed for a specific term but is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in

accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all directors and all directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the

year.
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The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors. The Board conducts meetings

on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the

ARFNESEABBENRONER  ME
PHMTEFEFRTEZNAES TRFFEE
ESSNEHAEXRHRERAGAIGEL A

year, the Board held a total of six regular board meetings and twelve ad-hoc board 5511? #oRFR EEGEHBITNRES
meetings. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set out EERT_ABHESESE -E58
below: %ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂj}%ﬁh mE
No. of No. of
regular ad-hoc
Attendants meetings Attendance  meetings Attendance
5
HEE PlEgRy HERB g3RB  HERE
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) TtEEE (FE) 6 6 12 12
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong Bacibitad 6 6 12 12
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) (BlEEHREFLLE)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BFERLT 6 6 12 10
Mr LAl Kam Wah RipERE 6 6 12 12
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBXL 6 6 12 12
Mr NG Chi Ming REATE 6 0 12 0
(Appointed on 3rd September 2010) (RZZE-—ZTFNA=-REZMF)
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul ESEE 6 6 12 0
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRikBEL & 6 4 12
Mr CHING Yu Lung BIMELE 6 3 12 0

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the
Board and has met the recommended practice under the Code to have at least
one-third of its members comprising independent non-executive directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and financial management expertise. The biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, which demonstrates a

diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

E=eNOB RBAN  BNERGKEEE
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the definition of the

Listing Rules.

*  To establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and

set the objectives of the management;

*  To approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

*  To decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

*  To oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.

The Members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of
the Company and of the Group.The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30th June 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th
June 2010, the Members of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies
and, apart from those new and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2010,
have applied them consistently with previous financial periods. Judgments and
estimates have been made that are prudent and reasonable.The reporting

responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 36 to 37.
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The Board has not set up a nomination committee. The nomination of new directors
has been delegated to the Chairman and other executive directors. They review
regularly the need to appoint additional directors with appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience. The Board will then consider the appointment

of the candidates nominated by them as directors of the Company.

The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee
consists of all independent non-executive directors. The composition and attendance

record of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Attendants

HEE

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) AEExE (ZEEFE)
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIXELE

Mr CHING Yu Lung BIngE T A

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to

maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Given below are the main

duties of the Audit Committee:

(a) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature

and scope of the audit;

EXQVERURAZEE -REFNESEAT
EREBHTESAR - REGEHEHZE
ARBBRNBRTEERIBIESTLH
HE  EXeRERZAREMRE LK
BALEARAES -

Xfﬁﬂl

ARERBEBRACREREBRLZEEG LR
ERE BRZBem2BBYFNTESE
B BREEGZAKREFLENT

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
HESBERY,BARY HE R
3/3 100%

3/3 100%

3/3 100%
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©

to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to

the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters

the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management

where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2010, the Audit Committee met three times during

the year, in particular, to review and discuss the followings:

the auditing and financial reporting matters;

the appointment of external auditor;

the establishment of internal control system; and

the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the Auditors and

all senior staff of the Group.
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The Company has formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee which stated clearly its authorities and duties in accordance with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange. The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors and an executive director. The composition

and attendance record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Attendants
HEE

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Chairman) AEELE (FE)

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIXELE
Mr HUI Sai Chung Bl e
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmEtsE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and overseeing the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance and
review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The remuneration

committee held two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2010.

ARAREMIAAERTETMEES 2R
BEE - FHEESEH-NBUERTESER
—MMITERAR c FMZE S 2HERRLE
e

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
HESERE AR HE R
2/2 100%

2/2 100%

2/2 100%

2/2 100%
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During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

BEEBRE BRRYE
FEERB I
LT

Audit services for the Group
Non-audit services including:
— review of interim results
— taxation services for the Group
— agreed upon procedures on the Group's

annual results announcement

Total g

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for
reviewing its effectiveness.The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial
and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the

occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the internal control systems, the Company has
engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to conduct
independent internal control review and to evaluate major operations of the Group.
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the

Company and its subsidiaries with no material issues noted.
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The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company’s corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. The Company's
website provides email address, postal address, fax number and telephone number
by which enquiries may be put to the Company. Constantly being updated in a
timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the Group's

business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a

high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in all
circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in
the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board
attends the Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. Poll results
are advertised in newspapers on the following day and are posted on the

Company's corporate website shortly after the meetings.
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PRICEWVATERHOUSE(COPERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the “"Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 38 to 41, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30th June 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2010 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th September 2010
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For the year ended 30th June 2010 Bl Z = F—FENA=THIFE

2010 2009
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
P &E TR TET
Revenue W gs 5 1,271,463 1,129,930
Cost of sales HEKA 8 (1,110,389) (1,019,313)
Gross profit EM 161,074 110,617
Other income Hpth g A 6 2,880 2,927
Other gains/(losses), net Hinlz,/ (EB8) —FE 7 4,656 (4,141)
Distribution costs 7 SHBC R 8 (37,554) (35,487)
Administrative expenses TR 8 (79,878) (79,170)
Operating profit/(loss) mERF,/ (BE) 51,178 (5,254)
Finance income B as 254 230
Finance costs B5ER (3,738) (7,472)
Finance costs - net M5 ER-%E 9 (3,484) (7,242)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRIADER, (E8) 47,694 (12,496)
Income tax G 10 (16,899) (5,884)
Profit/(loss) for the year RERHN,/ (BE) 30,795 (18,380)
Attributable to: AT AT
Equity holders of the Company ANGEES Il 28,352 (20,757)
Non-controlling interests FEE I 2,443 2,377
30,795 (18,380)
Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) KEFRAIRE
attributable to equity holders Eiaaf,/ (B8) 2
of the Company during the year BR&EF (BE)
(expressed in HK cent per share) (ABRAEE)
— Basic —&EK 13 7.68 (5.62)
- Diluted —-#8 13 7.68 (5.62)

The notes on pages 46 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FAZ 14 ENHERGEEMBRRABER

statements. e

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company are set out in note BN RRIRRZREFBEHNHTE12
12.
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Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Revaluation gains of property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land and
land use rights on transfer to investment
properties, net of tax (note 28(a))

Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company

— Non-controlling interests

RERH, (BE)

3
S

|

X -

LipiRa W

B

N

Wx - BERREBEEE L
REtEAEEREERENE
ZBRBIRE fh
(P =T 28(a))

EHER

AREHAER S W R

Bl

—RAMRER
—JRIRHlELS

Bl

The notes on pages 46 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

For the year ended 30th June 2010 BLZE=F—FFNA=THIFE

2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FTAL
30,795 (18,380)
1,824 —

— 419

1,824 419
32,619 (17.961)
30,176 (20,338)
2,443 2,377
32,619 (17.961)

FABENMN BN T AEREERBERROE

BB -
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As at 30th june 2010 R=F—FF X F=1H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land and land use rights
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deposits for acquisition of properties
Prepayment for property, plant and

equipment and renovation costs

Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Tax recoverable
Derivative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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Note
BiE

16
17
18
19
20

30

22

24
25

27
27
28
28

2010
HK$’000
TER

[15,435
21,005
30,560

690
8,125

7,129
4,486

187,430

278,846
238,545
22,810
969
1,755
82,589

625,514

812,944

36,920
62,466
47,176
256,041

402,603
20,831

423,434

2009
HK$'000
THET

97,991
15,998
25430
2,400
850
11,025

8,386

162,080

156,605
170,469
9,034
2,338
862
90,652

429,960

592,040

36,920
62,466
45,260
232,229

376,875
19,348

396,223



As at 30th june 2010 R=F—FFF=+H

2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P &E TER FAT
LIABILITIES Al
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long-term bank loans REBRITER 29 15,600 =
Obligations under finance leases MEMESME 29 235 693
Deferred tax liabilities ELERBRAE 30 5,241 4,155
21,076 4,848
Current liabilities NBEE
Trade payables BHRMNRK 26 97,630 63,962
Other payables, deposits received HiENR  EWET 2
and accruals RERER 19,524 15,660
Current portion of long-term bank loans RERITER - AEA M 29 4,800 —
Obligations under finance leases — MEEEEE BN
current portion 29 458 2,047
Short-term borrowings MHEEE 29 232,131 98,971
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA 24 6,272 4,742
Tax payable FEf IR 7,619 5,587
368,434 190,969
Total liabilities BARE 389,510 195,817
Total equity and liabilities BERRAE 812,944 592,040
Net current assets ERBEE 257,080 238,991
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAE 444510 401,071

On behalf of the Board

REEFE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EY Bl T EREFHILTE

Tt #FE]E

FAZ 14BN Z ARG VB RROEED

statements. 3 o

The notes on pages 46 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

Annual Report FEE & 09/ 10



As at 30th june 2010 R=F—FF X F=1H

2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i 3 TER FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARIRE 21 62,711 62,711
Current assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries L= PNCIE S 21 108,927 105,760
Other receivables H A R UK 144 |14
Cash and cash equivalents RBehBReFR 25 170 38
109,241 105,912
Total assets BEE 171,952 168,623
EQUITY EEa
Capital and reserves attributable NERFREIERA R
to the Company's equity holders
Share capital R 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium BB 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves H {1 28 62,895 62,803
Retained earnings RE & A 28 8,995 5,898
Total equity ks 171,276 168,087
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities nEBEE
Accruals BiITER 676 536
Total equity and liabilities mEsRAR 171,952 168,623
Net current assets ERBEE 108,565 105,376
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAERE 171,276 168,087
On behalf of the Board REEFE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
E BIFEREFHCTE
B #F Bl
The notes on pages 46 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FBR1MNBENMTRGE A BERENEE
statements. e
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For the year ended 30th June 2010 HZE—ZE—FFNA=THILFF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRREEDSD
Other reserves
EitEE
Share Exchange Non-
option fluctuation controlling
Share Share  reserve  Capital Revaluation  reserve  Retained interests
aptal  premum  ERE  reseve  reserve BH  eanings  FEIEH Total
RE RAEE  HE AARG EGRE KIER REEN 0 BE 28
HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000  HKHOO00  HK$000
Tér TErn T TEr TEr TR  TEn TR TEn
At It July 2008 RZFTNFLA-H 36920 62466 6475 408 N5 06 10297 17397 418104
Comprehensive income FalE
(Loss) fprofit for the year KE (BB) /4F — - - - - — Q0757 2377 (18380)
Other comprehensive income Etiirala
Release on liquidation of & subsidiary R-MELREEREL = = = = = 419 = = 419
Total comprehensive income FalEeE - — — — — 49 Q1) 231 (179%))
Transactions with owner BREEIRS
Capitalisation of loans from FEEREHER
non-controlling interests — — — — — — — 1,000 1,000
Frployees share options scheme: ESRERENE -
- value of employee services -EEREEE = = 198 = = = = — 198
~ lapse of share options -BRER - — (638 - - — 43 = =
200712008 final dividend paid -T2t/
“ZR\EERERE - - - - - - (369 (3692)
Dividend paid to XA FHEEGER 2 RE
non-controlling interests — — — — — — — (14 (1429
Total transactions with owners SMRELR B8 = - (I8 = = — 2689 (@6 (3920
At 30th June 2009 RZZENERAZTH 36920 62466 292 408 N5 045 39 19348 396223

FLZ1MBENREAGEVERRNEED

{/'\ °

The notes on pages 46 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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At Ist July 2009

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gains of property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land and
land use rights on transfer to investment

properties, net of tax (note 28(a))
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owner
Employees share options scheme:
- value of employee services

200972010 interim dividend paid

Dividend paid to
non-controlling interests
Acquisition of additional interests

in a subsidiary

Total transactions with owners

At 30th June 2010

The notes on pages 46 to |41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Share
capital
kx
HK$'000
TEn

36,920

RERH| -

Efpfralis

nx  BERZES
EELHRIERE
SRERANMZCRHR
Bk (Ff3E 28(a)) -

BREEZRS
EEEMRETS
-EEREER =
THZFEN
“E-TEERARE —
SRz fowd )

N

A

WE-HELARZ
BMER -

BIAELRHBE -

RZE-2F A=1H 36,920

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share
premium
Rx&E
HK$'000
TEL

62,466

62,466

ARARREEH
Other reserves
AR
Share Exchange
option fluctuation
reserve  Capital Revaluation reserve
BRE  reserve  reserve EX
ff EXRE EGRE XDRG
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEx TEx TEn
292 408 L5 42445
— — 1,824 —
— - 1,824 —
92 = = =
92 — — —
384 408 3939 4445

{/\ ®

Retained

earnings

RERA
HK$'000

TR

132009

28,352

18,352

(3.69)

(649
(4540)

256,041

Non-
controlling
interests
FEH
Bt
HK$'000
TR

19,348

2443

2443

(1.808)

848
(960)

20,831

FLZE14BNNEAZENBERERN

Total
ag
HK$'000
TE7

396,113

30,795

1,824

32,619

9

(3,469

(1.808)

(5.408)

423,434

BR



For the year ended 30th June 2010 BLZE=F—FFNA=THIFE

2010 2009
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt sE TER TET
Cash flows from operating activities ReXBsHER
Cash (used in)/ generated BT
from operations (FR) /EX28% 31 (98,058) 147,706
Hong Kong profits tax paid BB BFEN (2,119) (1,779)
PRC corporate income tax paid BT BEEEREN (7,171) (2,325)
Net cash (used in)/generated REXBM
from operating activities (FR) /EX2FH2 (107,348) 143,602
Cash flows from investing activities REEXBZBHER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELEE (30,279) (4,589)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights B E & £ ih o -3 (F F 4 (6,086) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE
plant and equipment KR EER 31 250 292
Increase in prepayments for property, plant and ~ #1% ~ BB K% 2
equipment and renovation costs KEBRMNR (7,129) —
Deposits for acquisition of properties WREEME 2 BEEM = (2,900)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBERCFRE (43,244) (7,197)
Cash flows from financing activities REXB RER
New bank loans i RITER 67,942 43,502
Repayment of bank loans EERTER (58,454) (68,028)
Increase/(decrease) in trust receipt loans ERlEER2EMm/ Chd) 144,072 (84,982)
Repayment of capital element of finance leases  EEBMEREE A H (2,047) (2,767)
Interest element of finance lease payments MEHEEMNEH M (52) (129)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests I F ISR BB (1,808) (1,426)
Dividends paid AR A (3,692 (3,692)
Interest received B KF A& 254 230
Interest paid on bank borrowings BERETEERNE (3,686) (7,343)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEXBHMEEL/
financing activities (FR) 2F8Re 142,529 (124,635)
Net (decrease)/increase in ReRkBReBR
cash and cash equivalents CR4) /Hm (8,063) 11,770
Cash and cash equivalents FNzRE
at beginning of the year EBREEH 25 90,652 78,882
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZBReRASER 25 82,589 90,652

The notes on pages 46 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FWR1MNBENNT RGN BRENBEL

statements. 3 o
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Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton

HMI |, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been

approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th September 2010.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value

through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note
4.

@ Annual Report FE {4 09/ 10
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Contd)

(@)

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations

The following new standard, amendments to standards and
interpretations to standards are mandatory for the financial year
ended 30th June 2010:

Hong Kong Accounting Standand ("HKAS") | (Revised),
"Presentation of Financial Statements”. The revised standard
requiries “non-owner changes in equity” to be presented separately
from owner changes in equity. As a result, the Group presents all
owner changes in equity in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, whereas all “non-owner changes in equity” are presented
in a performance statement. Entities can choose whether to present
one performance statement (the statement of comprehensive
income) or two statements (the income statement and statement
of comprehensive income). The Group has elected to present two
statements: an income statement and a statement of comprehensive
income. Comparative information has been re-presented so that it
is also in conformity with the revised standard. Since the change in
accounting policy only impacts presentation aspects, there is no

impact on earnings per share.

HKFRS 3 (revised), “Business Combinations”,
amendments to HKAS 27, "Consolidated and Separate Financial

,and HKAS 31,

and consequential
Statements”, HKAS 28, “Investments in Associates”
“Interests in Joint Ventures”, are effective prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after

st July 2009.

2.1 HEREE(E)

(a)

T?K W%ﬁ HT/ E‘J
REBNEE

HRRZ 5T

BE-_ZT-THFNA=TAHL
EK - ATHRIRR] - HE8
ZETRRBEAHEA

A G RAIE 15 (KERT)
[ RRMEZS] - BIBER]
ERRTEFFREAFBENE
HEP | VREESHEEN
EREHHMINE - Bt - K
SEEAFEZZHRD IR
SHREENESEY  MIF
1

i

E\

SR BENERZBAES
FEWERPIIR - T8
BREE R (R RER)

E\

}

BoREMERRE (—RER
HM s R — R A EKR)

R AEEBEERIM
RI|E  —REBORBRAM
—REAWER - WEREFE

BHFIR - AFAEITER -

B B R AE R S5
HHE - A H SRS L
ye-

BRMBHRE R EINR (KL
A [RBad] - REMmSIK
HERGHENL TR [HE
RBAUBBEHRER]  BEES
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BIRER G EFEINRMN
BERRMER]OES R
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HENEEFERSHRR
RBEENEHAHER -
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Contd)

(2)

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations (Cont'd)

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method to
business combinations but with some significant changes compared
with HKFRS 3. For example, all payments to purchase a business are
recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the
income statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related costs are

expensed.

As the Group has adopted HKFRS 3 (revised), it is required to
adopt HKAS 27 (revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements”, at the same time. HKAS 27 (revised) requires the
effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control and these
transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. The
standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. During the year ended
30th June 2010, the Group had not undertaken any significant
business combinations and there was no material transactions
entered into with non-controlling interests. Accordingly, the impacts
on adoption of these revised standards are relatively insignificant to

the Group.

@ Annual Report FFE {4 09/ 10
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Contd)

(@)

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations (Cont'd)

Amendment to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. The
amendment requires enhanced disclosures about fair value
measurement and liquidity risk. In particular, the amendment
requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of a fair
value measurement hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy
only results in additional disclosures, there is no impact on earnings

per share.

HKFRS 8, "Operating Segments”, replaces HKAS [4, “Segment
Reporting”. The new standard requires a “management approach”,
under which segment information is presented on the same basis as
that used for internal reporting purposes. This has resulted in a
change in the reportable segments presented. In addition, the
segments are reported in a manner that is more consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
Comparatives for 2009 have been restated. However, such
restatement in note disclosure does not have any impact on the

balance sheet.

2.1 HEREE(E)

(a)

RVETRTEER - SR 2 5]
rEEBNTE (B)

BREMBREERETRIE/
TH: BEINER - LEE
HEXREREBEAAEETE
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Contd)

(2)

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards and (a)

interpretations (Cont'd)

The following amendments to standards and interpretations are

also mandatory for the financial year ended 30th June 2010:

HKFRSs (Amendment)
LRERMBRELEN (B
HKFRSs (Amendment)
ZREBFREMGIRERER (B
HKAS 23 (Revised)
BB Gt ERE 235 (KR
HKAS 32 and HKAS | (Amendments)
BEARGTERE2R R FE 1R (BFTX)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
BR G EAEI9%R (BT X)
HKFRS | (Revised)
BRPHREERF 15 (KB
HKFRS | and HKAS 27 (Amendment)
BRPHMEEAEIRLR
BEGTERE275 (BFTA)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
BRPGREERF2R (BFTX)

BEY)

BHEN)

Hong Kong International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee
("HK(IFRIC)")-Int 15

B (ERNERERERES) -
ZEE15%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

5 ARV BREREBLZES) -
2EZ16%

@ Annual Report FFE {4 09/ 10

2.1 WREE(E)

R ETER - SRR ZEF]
LEREBNTE (8)

AT ERERI A AT R TS
AEBZE-_T—TF A=t
B REERR :

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008
20085 ZEE B I E LA 2 2k

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009!
2009 ZIRE B B & EA 2 B

Borrowing Costs
fE &M A
Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations arising on Liquidation

REMELANTTOESRIAREE

Eligible Hedge Items
RERYHIER

First Time Adoption of HKFRS
BRRMBEABBRE L

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

WEAR - KFEEHEBIBZDANREKR
Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

AR AR XX A9 2 5RO 60 57 8 {6k {1 Jo it 86

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

FHERR B

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

BINRI B BB H



2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 2.1 HREE(E)

(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards and (a) ERANFTETAER| - HERIEEE
interpretations (Cont'd) RRBNTE (8)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners
B (ERPHERERERES) - AEBEADRFREEE

ZEE1TH
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
Bt (ERPBERERERES) - BEFBREE
2EE 185
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 L BHEETBERELERFE2
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 which are effective for the Group for annual 5 BAEGEERE3IS
period beginning on Ist July 2009, all other amendments are effective % 75 (BRI HERER
for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2010 (also see EZ8e) -REFWHLRE
note (b) below). #(ERMBREREER

g)-REF16RZETH
HAKE_TTAFLA—
R FRAMERSN B
BETHRFIEE_FT—F
FEA-HENFHRA[L
M(MBELZIAT M

(b)) °
The adoption of the above amendments to standards and LA P ERI BT R TE
interpretations did not have any significant financial impact to the HAERWEEKMELE -

Group.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(®)

The following new standard, amendments to standards and (b)
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the year

ended 30th June 2010 and have not been early adopted:

HKFRSs (Amendment)
ZRBERMBRE LR (BITX)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
BE G ERF 245 (RIERT)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
BR G EF2NR (BT

HKFRS | (Amendment)
B BRE RS 1R (BITX)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
BERBREERE25R (BTE)

HKFRS 9
BAMBREEABR

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

B (ARMBRERREES) —
£ 145

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

BE (AR BRERBEEE) -
F195

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2010 !

2.1 HEREXE(E)
ATRELMHELIFREE—
E-TERAZTHLEEESE
REFTRER] - BRI EET A
wE - TERFRA

Improvements to HKFRSs 20102
2010 ZIRE B B & Al 2 B

Related Party Disclosures?
B

Classification of Right Issue'
GOk Y

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters'
BB BN BERELERE - FHERRER

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions'

MBSz FE-KBARE AR

Financial Instruments?
AN\ T
FTEMIAS

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement?
RIEE & BRNBEMR

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments'

WA T AR HH B AE

mALE _T-TFLA—

B 60 F 3R BRI A A

E Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 201 | 2 HAEE_T——F+H—
B 80 F 3R B R A

9 Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2013 s HASE-T—=F+tA—
AR FRAREN

@ Annual Report FFE {4 09/ 10



2.1

Basis of preparation (Contd)

(®)

The following new standard, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the year

ended 30th June 2010 and have not been early adopted: (Contd)

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs 2009, HKAS 17
(Amendment), “Leases” has been amended by removing specific
guidance regarding classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate
inconsistency with the general guidance on lease classification. As a
result, leases of land should be classified as either finance or
operating lease using the general principles of HKAS 17, i.e.
whether the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee. Currently, land
interest which title is not expected to pass to the Group by the
end of the lease term was classified as operating lease under
“Leasehold land and land use rights”, and amortised over the lease

term.

HKAS 17 (Amendment) is required to be applied retrospectively by
the Group for the financial year ending 30th June 2011. The
application of the amendments to HKAS |7 might affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s leasehold land and
land use rights but is not expected to have a material effect on the

Group's overall financial performance and financial position.

The Directors also anticipate that the adoption of other new
standard, amendments to standards and interpretations will not
result in a significant impact on the results and financial position of

the Group.

2.1 HEREE(E)

(b)
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2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of

the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (note 2.9). The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(b)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owner of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on

disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.3 Segment information

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The

chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the executive directors of the Company that make

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(9)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(c)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate

component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated income statement as part

of the gain or loss on sale.
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2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

—  Buildings 2% - 2.5%
—  Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired

lease term and 20%

—  Machinery and equipment 12.5%
—  Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
- Motor vehicles 20%
—  Tools and moulds 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated on the same basis as

described above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

income statement.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried
at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the
date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes
in the fair value of the investment property are recognised in the income

statement as part of other gains/losses.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 46 to 50 years. Amortisation
of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis

over the period of leases.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified
as investment property. Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The

operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.
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2.7

2.8

Investment properties (Contd)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined annually by
independent external professional valuers. Fair value is determined based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. Changes in fair values

are recorded in the income statement as part of other gains/losses.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives

of five years.
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2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in the income statement.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill.
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2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every

reporting date.

(9)

(b)

(9

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to

be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables include trade and other

receivables and bank balances.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months

of the balance sheet date.
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2.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are presented in the income statement
within “other gains/losses” in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the

Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The
translation differences on monetary security are recognised in the
income statement; translation differences on non-monetary securities are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.1

—

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income

statement when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The
asset's carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.10 HHEE (&)

ENBERAHEENEFRELK
BIER - CRERERNRFAF
ERBROERRRIMEREEHH
BF - IHLEERATAZRER
AN B WIRIR M - &
RamRERDE D EMWA

2,11 (I EERE

FEBEREBERSHRFERER
ERBEBERAR —HHEEIX
—HMBEERLRARE - REER
EREERENNARERERE
EREE—FAZTEMHERHR
RE(RAER]) &R (L&
F)BRERUZRIZATRHEE
M ARAEREBKNF B
NREME  BRNEREELS
REEATEHRAERELRE
B -

AEEEAFEREFERENT
Bl BREBENIREEEERA
EERPEEERERMEERM
Rt RRR2RE (PREDREL
MARERRX) HREMENZR
ATE - BEREET ARE - M
ReBAEHFRRBERER -

IMEREER - RE R R A B
Do iR R R R 2R E
ERBERTEENEMF (FIMEHA
WERFREMEE) @ MZAEHE
AHREBRI AR RERE
[E o

Annual Report FEE & 09/ 10 @



2.11

2.12

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
the profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the
separate consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in
the separate consolidated income statement on equity instruments are

not reversed through the separate consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging

instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial
instruments are recognised immediately in the income statement within

other gains/losses.
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2.13

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

2.15

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement within administrative expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against administrative

expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with

banks and bank overdrafts, if any.
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2.16

2.17

2.18

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Financial liabilities (including trade payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. An equity instrument is any contract
that does not meet the definition of financial liability and evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period

of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the income statement in the period in which they are

incurred.
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2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the related tax

is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the places
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis

of amounts expected to be paid to the relevant tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred

income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that

the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.20 Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions once the contributions have

been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the
Group's and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$ 1,000 per month. The contributions are fully and immediately

vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in the Mainland China. Contributions are
made by the Group on a monthly basis to these state-sponsored
retirement plans based on a percentage of the relevant income of
the relevant employees. The Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions beyond its contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension

obligations payable to retired employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited
by those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.
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2.20 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(b)

()

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of

leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, including any market performance
conditions; excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and excluding the impact of any non-vesting

conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share

premium when the options are exercised.
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2.20 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(d)  Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected
to be settled within twelve months and are measured at the

amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to

passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.22 Leases
(i) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on

a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(i)~ Finance leases
The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of

the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current liabilities. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for

each period.

2.23 Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values and are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in the income statement over the period of the relevant
liabilities and (ii) the amount of which the Group is obligated to

reimburse the recipient under the financial guarantee contracts.
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2.24 Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have
been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(iii) - Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.
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2.25 Dividend distribution

3.1

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders for final dividend

and board of directors for interim dividend.

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial

performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

(a)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and The People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC") with transactions mainly settled in
Hong Kong dollar ("HKD™), Renminbi (“RMB”) and US dollar
("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to USD and RMB. Since HKD is pegged to
USD, management are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk

exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(a)  Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies other than
their own functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net
foreign exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign
exchange contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th
June 2010, the Group had certain outstanding forward foreign
currency contracts mainly to sell/purchase US dollars, details of
which have been disclosed in note 24. Certain of the Group's
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and
borrowings were also denominated in foreign currencies, details of
which have been disclosed in notes 23, 25, 26 and 29.

At 30th June 2010, if HK dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$3,338,000 (post-tax loss for
2009: HK$ 1,495,000 lower/higher) higher/lower, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of foreign currency-
denominated financial assets and liabilities. The Directors however
are of the opinion that any changes in fair value of the Group's
forward foreign exchange contracts, as a result of any reasonable
changes in exchange rate between HK dollar and US dollar as at
30th June 2009 and 2010, would have no significant financial impact
to the Group.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(b)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank, details
of which are disclosed in note 25.The Group's exposure to changes
in interest rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings, details of
which are disclosed in note 29. Borrowings carry at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk whereas those
carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate

risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to
the trend of changes in interest rates. The Group also uses certain
financial derivatives to manage its interest rate risk, details of which

have been disclosed in note 24.

As at 30th June 2010, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$306,000 higher/lower (post-tax
loss for 2009: HK$438,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest income on cash at bank net off with higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. The Directors
are also of the opinion that any changes in fair value of the Group’s
interest rate swap contracts, as a result of any reasonable changes
in interest rates as at 30th June 2009 and 2010, would have no

significant financial impact to the Group.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(9

(d)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its
plastic materials which is largely dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to

determine its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and
available-for-sale financial assets included in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit

risk in relation to its financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC, all
derivatives financial instruments are also entered into with these
financial institutions, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution and management does not
expect any losses arising from non-performance by these

counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. As at 30th June 2010, the Group has made certain

deposits for acquisition of properties.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

()

(e)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of trade and other
receivables (including deposits made) based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade
and other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the
Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made in these consolidated
financial statements. The Directors are also of the opinion that
deposits are made to credit worthy parties and do not expect non-

performance of the counter parties.

At 30th June 2010, the Company had provided guarantees in
respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$274,124,000 (2009: HK$70,709,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group'’s primary cash requirements have been for additions of
and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources and bank

borrowings.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Contd)

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and long-term.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity structure of
the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group.
The Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and
committed banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient
cash flows to meet any unexpected and material cash requirements
in the ordinary course of business. As at 30th June 2010, the total
banking facilities made available to the Group amounting to
HK$390,401,000 (2009: HK$338,255,000) of which HK$274,124,000
(2009: HK$99,196,000) was being utilised by the Group.

@ Annual Report FFE {4 09/ 10

3.1 BIBREBEZE(E)

(e)

MEEZERE (B)
REBNHRRRERERER
REHREE € FRAER
EREARENASTEN
REBRANGEE  UNRE
HERRANRDESHE °

AEERHEERAE AR
EBRARAERZ RPES LB
BREEEINE  UFERE
BRERBERER - KEET
BRERDEERDAERE
BERBEZKE - URRE
RRZBEESTRUENRAEE
%%ﬁﬁZ**ﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁ
EER -RZT-TEFAA=
+A $%@ﬁ§ﬁﬁﬁfﬁhi§§k
£ #£390,401,0008 T (= F
T N & @ 338,255,000/
) ERAEELEHA
274,124,0008 L (Z T T N1
% : 99,196,000/ L) °



3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd) 31 BEEBEZE(E)

(e)  Liquidity risk (Contd) ) HBEZERE (E)
The table below analyses the Group's and the Company’s financial TREJRBHAEFEHZERN
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant ISMANFRBERARERA
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance AREAEZ AN BAG
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed REEEZTEeRIAAR
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow based on 2ot e TREBMNEERE
the earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be RASERARARZZEND
required to pay. RPRHHFOFRERRER
g
Between Between
Within [ and 2 and
| year 2 years 5 years Total
—£R —EMER MELER g
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTER TER TER
Group £
At 30th June 2010 RZE-FF A=+H
Trade payables EHENR 97,630 — — 97,630
Other payables and accruals AT RERER 15,125 — — 15,125
Bank borrowings RiTfEE 238,362 5123 11,218 254,703
Obligations under finance leases REMESRE 473 236 — 709
Derivatives financial instruments TEERMIA 1,967 95 — 2,062
Total ik 353,557 5,454 11218 370229
At 30th June 2009 RZZENEXA=1H
Trade payables EIRMAH 63962 — — 63962
Other payables and accruals EftENARERER 13,695 13,695
Bank borrowings RITEE 99,760 = = 99,760
Obligations under finance leases BEMEERT 2,098 473 236 2,807
Derivatives financial instruments fTESRIA 2357 1,648 86 4091
Total e 181,872 2,121 322 184315
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3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(e) Liquidity risk (Contd)

Within
| year
—-FR
HK$°000
TER
Company N A]
At 30th June 2010 RZE-FE A=1H
Accruals BiRER 676
At 30th June 2009 RZZEZNEAA=TH
Accruals BiRER 536

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and make adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments

to shareholders, issue new shares or to obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (include current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the

consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.
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3.1

HMERREE(E)
(e) REEZER (E)

Between Between
| and 2 and
2 years 5 years Total
-EZMER WELER ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT
— — 676
— — 536
32 BXEBREE
AEEMESEREE  BRREX

EBEMESE  JARTRMD
BB RS E AREFIS
FIES 5 A VR AR AE &
@M -

AEEEREARE  LRELHE
RENEBELAR - BTHFH
ARENGRE AREAUEEHE
XA FERER MRS ZE - BITHK
FESHORITER -

AEENRAELREREER -
I b R IR IR B 75 )% WA BR A AR & At
E-BRHFRAREE (BREAE
ERBRMIINANE R IFENHE )
BRERERREFEY - REXR
[#] (WEAEERBERMD) M
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3.2

33

Capital risk management (Cont'd)
The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June

2010 and 2009:

Total borrowings (note 29) miEs (Ma29)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) & : e MR EHE (M 25)

Net debt EFFE
Total equity B

Total capital R AR
Gearing ratio EXRGRELE

The increase in gearing ratio during the year ended 30th June 2010 was

mainly resulted from the increase in the total borrowings during the year.

Fair value estimation

Effective Ist July 2009, the Group adopted the amendment to HKFRS 7
for financial instruments that are measured in the balance sheet at fair
value, this requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the

following fair value measurement hierarchy:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level I)

*  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)

or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

32 BXERER(E)
NR_E-ZEFER-_ZTNFEAA=

TH AEEZAELEDT

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTAL
253,224 101,711
(82,589) (90,652)
170,635 11,059
423,434 396,223
594,069 407,282
29% 3%
REBEZZT-—TFA=THLHF
EA - BENEEEEMNEBER
BELETRE -
AFELH

H-ZZAFE+LA—HE A&
BRWNBEMBERELERNE 75

ERcBmIAEEEABRED
REEFENER  ERTERT
SInnBEABRBREAR
BT E

_H

. EREENEEEERTS
HRE (REBE) (51
B -

s BRTIFEBMERHOBWE
o REENMABNAEE
WEMLEA - TRER (A
PlanEs) sk BREE
18) (%2/8) -

o EBEMBEILFEREANER
mEBEMNE A (B3 8
@A) (F3) °
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Contd)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivable and deposits and
other receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including
current borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals,

approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These

instruments are included in level |.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use-
of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair

value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

As at 30th June 2010, the Group's available-for-sale financial assets and
derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial
instruments. The following table presents the changes in level 3

instruments for the year ended 30th June 2010.
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3.3 APEfE ()

Available-for-sale Derivative financial

3.3 Fair value estimation (Contd)

financial assets instruments Total

AHRHENKEE I(TEEWMIA mE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TERT FER FERT

Opening balance HA ¥ 45 ER 850 (3,880) (3,030)
Losses recognised RIBRERER

in profit or loss (160) (637) (797)

Closing balance HIIR A5 R 690 (4,517) (3,827)

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

()

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment with reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from use of these assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will adjust the depreciation charge where useful lives or
residual values vary with previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been

abandoned or sold.

TEBERKEAERBHBERRNER
REMAZBEEARHBERZMANA
TETRR - DER A fhE KA A -

REBYRRELGTAE G
BREEEOHSNABERER - U
THEABEHEERBROMG KRR A
EHEARTEMBFEHEERAG L
FREEFENBE -

n

(a) WX BERRENEHFLY
BERTE
AEBEEEBETENS  BER
RENEFAEAES  KERE
BIEER  ARABRETEEAR
AEBEAREAZTEENMER
ARG BN F MG
REGTTIAR R E RN
NE - BEERXENEEERTE
AERGEE - (A EAFHER
REFRIEEERARNERR
I O AR S B R LB
R EEMKIORE
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(9)

(b)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Contd)

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and

therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of judgements and

estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (i) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group's financial position and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the
projected performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it may

be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income statement.
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(9

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on
the basis of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after
allowing for outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for
reversionary income potential. These methodologies are based upon
estimates of future results and a set of assumptions as to income and
expenses of the property and future economic conditions. The fair value
of each investment property reflects, among other things, rental income
from current leases and assumptions about rental income from future
leases in the light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in

respect of the property.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. Provisions are made where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of the
receivables and impairment is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

(c)

(d)

B REYFE L A FIEE

EREVEZAFENIRE A4
EREMNMBYERTEHLELE
B mERS  BEEEERT
BEEe ks FREETERE
BE UBERXHMATERAZER
AR EREE RS E R - it
FENETRENYRRER 2 fh5
BB RBRIMAREEER 2R
R BREMEFZLNTEERRER
ARG zEERERIZE ALY
ARBEHNZHEE WS AEZRR
F oA AFETRRYER
Mgt 2 RE R -

FEW S BIE
AEBREBEHRUFAIREEREZ
FHEIEHRERRE - —BESHEE
LENBER TR ARERE
B RIE B - 30 RUTUR
ERBRAE R fhat - BB e
RRAREGAAZER  AZER
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(e)

(f

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based on
an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-
downs on inventories are recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the value of the inventories may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
uses its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. The valuation models require the input of subjective
assumptions, including forward foreign exchange rates, risk free rates and
market volatility. Changes in subjective assumptions can materially affect

the fair value estimate.
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(g)

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax charges in the

period in which such estimates have been changed.

(9)
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Turnover =X
Sales of goods HES M

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering

plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. Management has determined the
operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are
used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the
business from the operations nature and the type of products perspective,
including the trading of plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of
colorants, pigments and compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”),
manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic products (“Engineering plastics”)

and other corporate and business activities (“Others"”).

Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic business unit
that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions
are entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that
would also be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated

financial statements.
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The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments

for the year ended 30th June 2010 is as follows:

Turnover
— Gross revenue

— Inter-segment revenue

Revenue from external customers

Segment results

Finance income

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax

Profit for the year

Non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

SRR P W
REIE 3

B
HHER

BR 5 At
/ (B#H)
A

NSl
R

DB BR AR A

Trading

B%
HK$’000
TET

776,985

(4,183)

772,802

15,745

30
(1,946)

13,829

R0 -
Engineering
Colorants plastics
E6EH IREH
HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TR
282,444 248,212
(17,578) (15,751)
264,866 232,461
17,624 21,076
217 I
(1,285) (507)
16,556 20,570

HE-Z-TFRA=THLFERHK
RERRERREZAZIIHSE

Others
Hith
HK$’000
FTET

1,334

1,334

(3.267)

(3,261)

NHE

Group

EN -
HK$°000
TET

1,308,975

(37,512)

1,271,463

51,178

254
(3,738)

47,694
(16,899)

30,795
(2,443)

28,352
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BE_Z-ZFERA=TRHILEFERH
RERRERREZAZ2IRENHE
BT (&)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments
for the year ended 30th June 2010 is as follows: (Cont'd)

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
% EGE IRZEN Hith rEE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TExT TR THERT TR
Other information: Hith &R
Capital expenditure BERRMX 6,823 1,482 30,647 313 39,265
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BER
and equipment REME 326 9,072 4212 904 14,514
Amortisation of leasehold land ME LR+
and land use rights &Rk HH 82 185 24 253 544
Amortisation of intangible assets & E 2 # 15 — — — 400 400
Impairment of available-for-sale A it [ & B 7%
financial assets BERME = = = 160 160
Impairment of intangible assets BEEERE — — — 2,000 2,000
(Reversal of)/provision for FERE
impairment of inventories (B[m),/ B (2,707) 855 177 2,329 654
Reversal of impairment of PSR B 2 i
receivables B = (287) = = (287)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on fTESRITAR
derivative financial instruments ERER/
(fzs) 910 — 22 (295) 637
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The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments RZE-—ZFFSA=+THRBAERL

at 30th June 2010 is as follows: ERREZAZINBREDHBERDMT :
Engineering

Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group

g% el IRER Hith rEE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TRERT TERT TER TEx TER

Segment assets NEHEE 357,753 238,927 160,512 55,752 812,944
Total assets BEE 812,944
Segment liabilities DEEE 82,390 23,586 24,990 5,320 136,286
Borrowings =R=1 185,832 23,487 43,905 — 253,224
Total liabilities BERE 389,510
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The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments

for the year ended 30th June 2009 is as follows:

Turnover
— Gross revenue

— Inter-segment revenue
Revenue from external customers
Segment results

Finance income

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax

Loss for the year

Non-controlling interests

Loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company
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HHER
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Trading
25
HK$'000
TET

663,056

(3.796)

659,260

(20,874)

70
(3481)

(24,285)

Colorants

EBH
HK$'000
TET

266,029

(20,967)

245,062

7015

160
3.I51)

4,024

82-7%

—=< =<

BT

Engineering
plastics
Ti2EH
HK$'000
TAET

242,785

(18,375)

224,410

15616

(840)

14,776

NERA=ZTHIEFERHE
RERRERREZAZ2IRENHE

Others
Hith
HK$'000
FTET

1,203

®)

1,198

7011

(7011)

Group
AEH
HK$'000
FHET

1,173,073

(43,143)

1,129,930

(5,254)

230
(7.472)

(12,496)
(5,884)

(18,380)
(2.377)

(20,757)



BE_ZTNFAAZTHIEFERH
RERRERREZAZIRENHE
BT - (&)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments
for the year ended 30th June 2009 is as follows: (Cont'd)
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Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
25 el IRZH Hih AEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHET FHET FHET
Other information: HER -
Capital expenditure BARRX 425 3,208 884 72 4,589
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BE X
and equipment REFE 265 7,743 3,829 1291 13,128
Amortisation of leasehold land HELH Rt
and land use rights & M 2 #8H — 186 — 262 448
Amortisation of intangible assets & E 2 B §H — — — 800 800
Impairment of available-for-sale A ERB
financial assets BEME — — — [,150 ,150
Provision for impairment FEREERE
of inventories 2,328 [15 593 — 3,036
Provision for/(reversal of) e FOREE R
impairment of receivables Bs/ (&m) 1,395 (783) 134 128 874
Unrealised loss on derivative TESBIA
financial instruments AERBR 4,107 — — 695 4,802
Loss on liquidation of a subsidiary ~ Hi B A R4 % &8 = = = 419 419



The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments
at 30th June 2009 is as follows:

Trading Colorants
g5 =y
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

5
]:Tlﬁ
e

Segment assets 165,549 262918

Total assets BEE
Segment liabilities SEAE 39,778 24,070
Borrowings e 58,877 41,590
Total liabilities BaR

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers
attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2010 is approximately
HK$815,802,000 (2009: HK$782,747,000), and the total of its revenue from
external customers from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately
HK$455,661,000 (2009: HK$347,183,000).

At 30th June 2010, the total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets
and rights arising under insurance contracts) located in Hong Kong is
approximately HK$94,677,000 (2009: HK$64,785,000), and the total of these
non-current assets located in other locations (mainly the PRC) is
approximately HK$87,577,000 (2009: HK$88,059,000).
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ERREZAZINBEDHERMT -

Engineering
plastics Others Group
Ti22H Hity ZN- 3L

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET

108,137 55,436 592,040
592,040

23,857 6,401 94,106
1,244 — 101,711
195,817
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B(ZERPHE) ZIFEFEKAZNR
455,661,000% & (Z T N F -
347,183,000 T) °

R-E—ZFESAZ1TH KepmIa
RELEBBEEEMINEBEZERDE
EUREERINEERRRENEELZ
%) #A94677,0008 L (ZEZT A
% : 64,785,000 7T) + MR E i E
(FERFE) ZUHEBFRBDEENR
87,677,000 T (Z T T N F
88,059,000/ T



Rental income

Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately

HK$263,000 (2009: HK$189,000).

Fair value gains on investment properties
(note 18)
Derivative financial instruments
— forward foreign exchange contracts and
interest rate swap contracts held
for trading
— unrealised
— realised
Net exchange gains
Loss on liquidation of a subsidiary
Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets (note 20)
Impairment of intangible assets (note 19)

Write-back of other payables

2010
HK$’000
TER

HEWA 2,880

2010
HK$’000
TERT
REMENRFEYE (M 18)
1,422
fTHEEmMIA
—FHEEBERBZINE
BEHAOENEEHEH
—RER (637)
-2ER 919
SNV 5 58 3,112
MBAREEER —
AEHEMBEERE (M 20)
(160)
mEERE (ME19) (2,000)
Hofth & 15 BB B 2,000
4,656
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2009
HK$'000
THET

2927

REME 2 HERYT A £4263,0008 T
(ZZEZTNHE : 189,000/ ) °

2009
HK$'000
TR

710

(4.802)
85|
669

(419)

(1,150)

(4,141)



Cost of inventories sold excluding
manufacturing costs
Amortisation of leasehold land and land
use rights (note 17)
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 19)
Auditor's remuneration
Depreciation:
— Owned property, plant and equipment
— Property, plant and equipment under
finance leases
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment
of trade receivables
Provision for impairment
of inventories
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Employee benefit expenses, including
directors’ emoluments (note 14)
Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and buildings
Repairs and maintenance expenses
Transportation and packaging expenses
Travelling and office expenses
Utility expenses

Other expenses

Total cost of sales, distribution costs and

administrative expenses

Representing:

Cost of sales
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses
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HEFERA
(TEREEKRSE)
ME LT R+t
fEmEME (ME17)
B EEHHE (HE19)
ZEE &
e
—BENE  BELRE
-REREHERFALZ
mxE - BER&RE
B SRR E
(Bm),/ B
FEREER

HEWE  BER
REBZER/ (k)

B E@/FIX
(BRESEME) (HE14)

Tk F REHERS

EREBAEFREY
KERX
Hin B

HERA - HERAR
AR R
K&

HERA
GE [N
THRXH

2010
HK$’000
TER

1,048,043
544
400

2,078
14,229
285
(287)
654
400
82,612
10,683
3,352
18,042
5,857

11,697
29,232

1,227,821

1,110,389
37,554
79,878

1,227,821

2009
HK$'000
THET

959,425

448

800

1,585

10,677

2,451

874

3,036

(122)

75915

10,509

4013

17,370

5,784

10,766
30,439

[,133,970

1,019,313
35,487
79,170

1,133,970



Finance income:

— Interest income from bank deposits

Finance costs:
— Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

— Interest element of finance leases

Finance costs — net

s
— RITFEFHHBHA

HHER
—FRAFAZBEEZR
E- P )
—BEHENEHH

HEER—FE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2009:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's

subsidiaries established and operate in Mainland China has been calculated at

the rates of taxation as applicable to the relevant subsidiaries.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement

represents:

Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax
PRC corporate income tax

Under-provision in previous years

Deferred taxation (note 30)

NEERA
BAMEH
Bl A S
NEFERETE

EIEFE (KIFE30)

1

T

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTAL
254 230
(3,686) (7343)
(52) (129)
(3,738) (7.472)
(3,484) (7.242)

BERAMNBHREF NG ERTEN
BREANZTABE(ZEENF B
DZTAER) FEEE - FERALR
BASERNTEANMKIREE ZHE
RAIZERBRFERLE -

HEWRBERZIBAIHA

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
4118 2966
8,123 4,084
450 127
12,691 7177
4,208 (1,293)
16,899 5,884
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The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax differs from the AEBEBRBAER, (BE) 2HE
BREXAEBNGH 2 HEMmMEgEL

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as

follows: BB ERMD
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREAER, (B1R) 47,694 (12,496)
Calculated at a taxation rate EHE165% (ZETNF :
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) 16.5%) stE 2B 7,870 (2,062)
Effect of different taxation rates in PR ARG ER 2 8 2,135 909
Mainland China
Income not subject to taxation BARDT A (485) (56)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes N AJF1HE 2 3% H 1,265 443
Tax losses not recognised AERZRMBER 1,842 4,693
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {3 bAfE R BB % BB (827) —
Under-provision in previous years NEFERETR 450 127
Reversal of tax losses previously recognised RTE R B &R 2,722 —
Others Hith 1,927 1,830
16,899 5,884
The profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in AARR A B RE 2 D ARREN R
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a profit of A/ (E518) B 416,789,000/ T (ZF
HK$6,789,000 (2009: loss of HK$584,000). TNE - §518584,00087T) ©
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Interim, paid, of HK1.0 cent (2009: Nil) Bk Hfk B =A% 1.0 Bl
per ordinary share (ZZZNF - &)

Final, proposed, of HK2.0 cents (2009: Nil) B REBR S8 2.0 1L
per ordinary share (note) (ZZZNF : &) (&)

Note:

At a meeting held on 28th September 2010, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per ordinary share. This proposed dividend was not reflected as a dividend
payable in these financial statements and will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained earnings for the year ending 30th June 201 I.

2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$'000
TER THET
3,692 —
7,384 —
11,076 —

3t

RZ-ZFNA-T\BBEfT283L &
ERFRBEREREER2.08 - tERK
BB Y ENAHBEREFIERARSEDR
BE_Z——F R A=TRALFEZREEN
RO
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Basic

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss)
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity NAIREREERF]
holders of the Company (HK$'000) (BE) (F&xT)
Weighted average number of ordinary FREETEBRR
shares in issue 2 IniEF 8
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREXERF,/
(HK cents per share) (BE) (BRAEW)
Diluted

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of
dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from the Company’s share options.
Dilutive earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 30th June 2010 and
2009 equal basic earnings/(loss) per share as the exercise of the outstanding

share options would be anti-dilutive.

Wages, salaries and other allowances TE - HEREMZE
Pension costs BAREKAR
Share-based compensation expense PARR A7 32 A~ 69 B 2

@ Annual Report FE {4 09/ 10

E- %S

FREARN/ (BE) DHERRBRE
waH,/ (BR)BRAERNERTEER
Z MEFHEGE

2010 2009
28,352 (20,757)
369,200,000 369,200,000
7.68 (5.62)

HE

AEEREERT (BR)E  EHE
HOTERBRMEFHEHFE - B
fRExfr A REEE ﬂZiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%Jﬂﬁiﬁﬁ
rgEh NEE-_T-TFRA=T
Bk=-% 7H¢/\ﬂ TR LM EF
B RTERATTEBREAREEY
2 AUMEEEZSREERN,/ (B
B ENERERER,/ (BE)

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRET TAT
78,805 71,907
3,715 3810

92 198
82,612 75915



(a)  Directors’ emoluments (@) EFHz
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_Z-ZEX A=THLEE
ended 30th June 2010 is set out below: BUESEZMEWT

Salaries, other
allowances Employer’s
and benefits contribution

in kind  Discretionary to pension

B bonuses scheme
Name of Director Fees HAZHK BME EXHEKS Total
EE2B ne ENAE :ORAAN P b

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr HUI Sai Chung Faus St 650 2,783 — 268 3,701
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong STEE KA 650 2,783 _ 268 3,701
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BETEEL — 2,093 — 131 2,224
Mr LAl Kam Wah RRELE — 2,093 — 84 2,177
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBRT — 1,478 — 146 1,624
Mr NG Chi Ming REREE

(note(i)) Lirza0) — 1,242 — 128 1,370
Independent Non- By

Executive Directors *BTES
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul MEEEE 150 — — — 150
Mr CHAN Dit Lung PRk L& 100 — — — 100
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmEkts 100 — — — 100
Total ok 1,650 12,472 — 1,025 5,147
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EFH2 (%)
BE-PRAFAASTALEE
SHEFZMEMT -

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Contd) (a)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year

ended 30th June 2009 is set out below:

Salaries, other
allowances Employer's

and benefits contribution

inkind  Discretionary to pension
- bonuses scheme
Name of Director Fees EfbEB R BITRTE BEXHRKS Total
ESAE e EMF& HTEAL Z B B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT FHT FHT TET
Executive Directors WIS
Mr HUI Sai Chung Faudfbite 650 2,778 — 268 3,696
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FENEE 650 2,778 — 268 3,696
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BEfEEL — 2,074 — 108 2,182
Mr LAl Kam Wah R|ELE o 2,074 = 70 2,144
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEELL — 469 — 145 1,614
Mr NG Chi Ming (note (i)) RERKE (M) — 1,229 — 94 1,323
Independent Non- By
Executive Directors FHTES
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul AEE%E 150 — — — 150
Mr FONG Pong Hing (note (il)) A #EEL4E (K (i) 6l — = 6l
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BB A 100 — — 100
Mr CHING Yu Lung (note (ii)) ~ FRE0BESE4E (FI&E(ii) 39 — — — 39
Total 1,650 12,402 = 953 15,005

REFERNT BESRERS 2
2 (ZFTNF  B) - RAFER
AEEBEXN FENESMEMN
SAREEERBUHE(CTEN
FE) -

No Directors waived any emoluments during the year (2009: Nil). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the year (2009: Nil).
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(b)

Notes:

(i)  Appointed on 3rd September 2010
(i) Resigned on 9th February 2009
(i)  Appointed on 9th February 2009

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include four (2009: four) Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and

payable to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

Salaries, other allowances
and benefits in kind
Discretionary bonus

Pension costs

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (2009: HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000).
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2009: Nil).

(b)

b

(i) MNZE-ZTFNA=-HEZ®T
(i) NZETNF-_ANAET
(i) RZZEZNF_ANBEZR®F

RERBHMAL

AEER ERAUGSHFMAL
B (CERAEF M) RE
EOEMEEREXZN DM
RE BTN UKSHFMALR

LERZHFMFBRT :
2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000
1,902 1,692
405 —
228 186
2,535 1,878

TEATZHEREA AR +ET
—EZ-REAN(CETNAF: —A
ITET - AZ_ABATIZE
BN - AEEL EE AL (B
EERHMES) NS ERERRE
MASIERREBN 2 BE (ZFF
NE ) »
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Furniture,

fixtures

Leasehold ~ Machinery  and office

improvements and  equipment Motor  Tools and

Buidings BE  equipment Fifl EER vehicles moulds Total
BT WERE BERRE BLERE A8 IARER %
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL TEL TERL TEL TR TEL

Year ended 30th June 2009 HEZBENEAA-TRLER
Opening net book amount BIEEFE 61,554 2337 35,637 339 3007 766 106,700
Additions m — 1,145 2038 10 891 305 4589
Disposalshwrite-off e/ H% - = (10) (1) (19) — (170)
Depreciation g (2,106) (988) (8,093) (941) (890) (10)  (13128)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 59448 249 277 2437 2879 %l 9799
At 30th June 2009 RZEZNENA=TA
Cost KA 80712 9552 172813 19,59 9,720 3916 296309
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (21,264) (70%8)  (143041)  (17159) (6841) (295)  (198318)
Net book amount KEFE 59,448 2494 977 2437 2879 %! 97991
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Furniture,

fixtures

Leasehold ~ Machinery ~ and office

improvements and  equipment Motor  Tools and

Buildings BE  equpment Hfl £ER vehicles moulds Total
BF NERRE HERRE BLERR RE IAREA BR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén Tén TEn Tén Tén Tén

Year ended 30th June 2010 HE-Z-TF
AR=THILEE
Opening net book amount BIREFE 59,448 2494 91N 2437 2879 %! 97,991
Additions g 30,653 £y} 588 902 604 10 BI79
Transfer from investment properties ERARENE 910 - - - - - 910
Transfer to investment properties ERTRENE (1,481) — — — — = (1,481)
Disposalshwrite-off &/ Wk (18) (624) - ®) - - (650)
Depreciation & 2317) (801) (9,265) (1,060) (938) (133)  (14514)
Closing net book amount BREEHE 87,195 1,391 21,095 2271 2,545 938 115435
At 30th June 2010 RZE-FEXA=1H
Cost KA 10,321 8,786 168,218 20,046 837 3954 319497
Accumulated depreciation ZiinE (23,126) (71395)  (4713)  (17,775) (5.827) (3,016)  (204262)
Net book amount REFE 87,195 1,391 21,095 2271 2545 938 115,435
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(a) Depreciation expense of HK$!1,148,000(2009: HK$9,493,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$331,000 (2009: HK$292,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,035,000 (2009:HK$3,343,000) in administrative

expenses.

(b) As at 30th June 2010, the cost and accumulated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment held by the Group under finance leases amounted to
approximately HK$2,736,000 (2009: HK$20,067,000) and HK$1,140,000
(2009: HK$ I 1,658,000) respectively.

(c) As at 30th June 2010, the net book amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$21,429,000 (2009: HK$21,165,000).

@ Annual Report FFE {4 09/ 10

(a)

HEBH11,1480008 L (ZE T
NEF - 9493000,%71)6@%1?%
ERA - 331,000 (ZETAH
% : 292,000 7T) B FJEE > 85 X
A} 3,035,000 L (ZEZNF
3,343,000 L) EBBEEITH X
tljo

RZZE—ZTFRA=1H K%&H
BEREHNEREZYE BER
RBEBZRARRATESRNR
2,736,000 T (Z T T N F -
20,067,000 7t) % 1,140,000 7T
(ZZZTNF : 11,658,000 7T)

R-ZZE-TFEXA=1+H ££E
AR E T (B 8 %8 4021,429,000% T
(ZZTNF : 21,165,000 7T) 2
ME - BERSIBEERTRA
BEASEDRBETEE -



The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

AEERHEL R T ERE ER
REBANLEREFTE  AREFED

g N
Group
58
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
At beginning of the year F4 15,998 16,446
Additions Zm 6,086 —
Transfer from investment properties HEEREME 1,040 —
Transfer to investment properties ERERENME (1,575) —
Amortisation i (544) (448)
At end of the year FR 21,005 15,998
Geographical analysis: B A HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
Leasehold land in Hong Kong, held on: EEBRE HELH
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTEZHEE 7,482 7,016
Land use rights in the PRC, held on: ERBRFA 2 T AR
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTH7HEE 13,523 8,982
21,005 15,998

R-ZE-ZF A=+H HELHR
+ i fF A AR T F B 494,692,000 1T
(ZZTN%F : 48250008 ) EEAT
R17 RASERFRIIEE -

As at 30th June 2010, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use
rights pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$4,692,000 (2009: HK$4,825,000).
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At beginning of the year E1)

Transfer from leasehold land EREHEE L

Transfer from property, plant and equipment BEEVE  BERRE
Revaluation gains of property, plant and Mm% BERRBEES

equipment and leasehold land and land use TR MEREERE
rights on transfer to investment properties REME B

Transfer to leasehold land EREHE LT

Transfer to property, plant and equipment BREENE  BELRRE
Fair value gains (note 7) NFEKE (M 7)

At end of the year FR

(a) The investment properties were revalued at 30th June 2010 by Chung,
Chan & Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer.

Valuations were based on current prices in an active market.

(b) As at 30th June 2010, the fair value of investment properties pledged as
security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$9,252,000 (2009: HK$9,427,000).

(c) The Group's interests in investment properties at their book values are

analysed as follows:

In Hong Kong, held on EEERE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTH7HEE
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Group

£E
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TET
25,430 24,720
1,575 —
1,481 —
2,602 —
(1,040) —
(910) —
1,422 710
30,560 25430

FEE2RRENEN_T-FTF
ANAZTHEBYEXRMEEMEE
TRBEERRMSNERERE

;’T:_o

R-Z—ZTFEXA=+H " BEY
¥REF(E49,252,0008 T (=%
TAF ¢ 9,427,000 0) EHLATF
R17 - AAKERSERITEE -

AEEREENME S REE
DWMT

Group
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
30,560 25,430



(d) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable (d) BRETIHENLCEHE  KR&
operating leases are as follows: EEKHEFENT
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THET
Not later than one year —5R 1,958 1,417
Later than one year and not —FREPERAF
later than five years 555 642
2,513 2,059
Technical know-how Bl A0
Group
%8
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR
Opening net book amount H9ERmE 3 E 2,400 3,200
Amortisation 5 (400) (800)
Impairment (note) HE (M) (2,000) —
Closing net book amount HR AR S{E = 2,400
Cost A 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation ZETEH (2,000) (1,600)
Accumulated Impairment ZEHRME (2,000) —
Net book amount REHE — 2,400
Note: PiasE

RAFER - EXCRIRMAB L KEEL
RAEREGECERETNOEE  HtHHE
RBE H

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of the technical know-how
and considered that the carrying amount of the asset would exceed its recoverable

amount and an impairment charge is recognised accordingly.

Amortisation of the Group's technical know-how has been included in cost of AEERMAH s BHEBEEHEX
sales. N o
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At Ist July RtHA—H
Impairment charge A
At 30th June RANA=+H

Available-for-sale financial assets represent a 3.6% equity interest in an unlisted
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is denominated

in HK dollar.

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

FEMBAD - ERA

Unlisted shares, at cost

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June

2010 are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

(b)  Amounts due from subsidiaries

The balances are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

The amounts are mainly denominated in HK dollar.
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2010
HK$°000
TET

850
(160)

690

Group
2009
HK$'000
TET

2,000
(1,150)

850

AHHERBEERRNERBRE KA
SER P A N AR A=Y DAY
& WEBRNETREN -

(a) HEBAFAKA

2010
HK$’000
TEx

62,711

Company
D
2009
HK$'000
TET
62,711

NZF-FFXA=HA - KAT
2 EBHBAAREHNEANE

WRMIE35

(b) EYHE L ALK

ZeRYEER  2ERERERE
KEE UEXBAETREN -



Group

&8
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET

Trading stocks BEEBER 175,661 63,628
Raw materials Rt 82,013 72013
Finished goods BURK 21,172 20,964

278,846 156,605
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in R RERNEERRFRBERRF
the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately X ZBFEEKAE#KR1,109,735,000%
HK$1,109,735,000 (2009: HK$1,016,277,000). TL(ZETNF ¢ 1,016,277,0008 L) °
Write-down of inventories amounted to HK$654,000 (2009: HK$3,036,000) AEBEAFEEE6S4,0008T (ZFF
for the year, which have been included in cost of sales in the consolidated FLE © 3,036,000 7T) 2 7 &R B E
income statement. B UTRGERERAEERER A

EE o

Inventories amounting to HK$199,541,000 (2009: HK$55,469,000) were held £ #£199,541,0008 L (Z T T NF -
under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (note 29). 55,469,000/ 1) 2 FE BB EFERER

TERZ =B A (HsE29) -
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Group

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
Trade receivables B 5 RYGR 218,650 156,766
Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : EMFORM BB S (2,088) (3,617)
216,562 153,149
Bills receivable e 21,983 17,320
238,545 170,469
The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following BORKFOREENTIEERE
currencies: fif :
Group
%8
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
HK dollar BT 112,157 60,132
Renminbi ARH 78,161 65,202
US dollar e 28,332 31,432
218,650 156,766
The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values. BHRRFZ REERE QA TERD -
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as ARASERERECRFRE  IUE
the Group has a large number of customers. FRNFITEEERNET 2AR -
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p?

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The AEBRHBHHERNEEHRI0ZE0

remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The B HfNGEARANTRRE TR E
ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows: T -BHRRRREZH ZKEK DTN
T
Group
&8
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Below 90 days 0—90H 202,931 137,474
91 - 180 days 91 — 180 H 10,000 8,542
Over 180 days B 180 A 5719 10,750
218,650 156,766
The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired has been TERAHIMENEIRRFNEEE
assessed by reference to historical information about the counterparty default ERBBLEEMHFARLRNBAE
rates. The existing counterparties do not have significant default in the past. BRETHME - RAZH T BEYRE

AR -
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As of 30th June 2010, trade receivables of HK$62,729,000 (2009:
HK$54,665,000) were past due but not considered to be impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent

history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Past due by paki

| - 30 days 1—30H
31 - 60 days 31—-60H
Over 60 days #8860 A

As of 30th June 2010, trade receivables of HK$2,088,000 (2009:
HK$3,617,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$2,088,000
(2009: HK$3,617,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate
to a number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult
economic situations. These trade receivables have been past due by more than
60 days.
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R-ZE—ZFEXA=1TH ZEHEKHK
62,729,000 T (= T T 1L F :
54,665,00078 7T) & 2 8 B I MR (B -
WERBPREESKMEEERENT
BNBEURE WEEZERBFNERE
AMWT

Group

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
47,215 34,099
5,756 8,483
9,758 12,083
62,729 54,665

RZZ-ZF- A=1H BFEKXK
2,088,000 T (ZET N 3,617,000
BL)EERE RZZE—ZF A=+
A E#E£%¥ 52088008 (2%
NE: 3,617,00087T) © ERIHENE
SREBREEREERBR AIMOER
BHOBEUER WERKHE B BB
#B60A -



Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group

is as follows:

At beginning of the vear F4)
UG (BE) £
WsE I R e ) 2 e MR

(Reversal of)/provision for receivables

Receivables written off as uncollectible
At end of the year FR

Bills receivables are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

HK dollar &I
US dollar =TT
Renminbi AR

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is

no recent history of default on bills receivable.

A subsidiary of the Group transferred certain bills of exchange amounting to
approximately HK$2,285,000 (2009: HK$2,515,000) with recourse in exchange
for cash as at 30th June 2010. The transactions have been accounted for as

collateralised bank advances (note 29).

AEEZESRURAEREEZ DN
T

Group
%

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
3,617 2,824
(287) 874
(1,242) (81)
2,088 3,617

EKEE BIHEEEA1808 7 - L
THI &% BB -

Group
%8

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
1,450 190
5,237 2,952
15,296 14,178
21,983 17,320

FREBECEREEZEAFERORR
Y EERER R

R_E-—ZFA=ZTBEAEEZHE
DA #)2,285,0008 T (ZEZNEF -
2,515,000 7T) W EREZHRARIE
A TROTNERRE - BARSET
REREERITBR( E29) -
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Held for trading
— Forward foreign
exchange contracts (note (i))

— Interest rate swaps (note (ii))

Notes:

(i)  Forward foreign exchange contracts

FHELE
—NEERHAL
(M)
—MEBHEL
(M EGi)

Assets
BE
HK$°000
TER

1,755

1,755

As at 30th June 2010, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange

contracts mainly to sell/purchase US dollars and purchase EURO. The maximum

notional principal amounts of these outstanding forward foreign exchange

contracts at 30th June 2010 were as follows:

Sell HK dollars for US dollars
Sell US dollars for HK dollars
Sell HK dollars for EURO

(i)

Interest rate swaps

HMEBTUEAET
EEETABAET
HEETUE AR

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at

30th June 2010 were as follows:

Pay interest at fixed rates and

receive interest at floating rates

@ Annual Report FFE {4 09/ 10

PAERR RS EPpI)

A BA S B I R UERH) B

2010

2009
Liabilities Assets Liabilities
={- BE AafE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
3,836 862 [,354
2,436 — 3,388
6,272 862 4742
B ¢
(i)  SMNERBAEH
AEBEERX

R-E-—TE A=1H"
z

RENEERANTENE BEXTR
BB -R-F-RFEAAZTBALE
ARWSEERENZBRRTELEE
mT
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET
2,123,550 1,107,600
382,200 195,000
9,265 —
i) FREHEH
RZE-ZFXA=ZTARERTUA
RRHANZREASBOT :
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET
85,000 85,000



Group Company

L] N
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT TET TEx THET
Cash on hand Be s 220 287 — —
Bank balances RITHER 82,369 90,365 170 38
82,589 90,652 170 38
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: ReRBReFEUTINEBREN :
Group Company
%H A
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR TER THET
HK dollar BT 13,445 13,349 170 38
Renminbi AR 45,151 54,265 — —
US dollar X 23,759 22,737 — —
Others Hity 234 301 — —
82,589 90,652 170 38
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. RITHERRBEERARTERZZBH X
The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi are deposited REOFE - ARENAREREU 2T
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these Renminbi denominated ERBITEBRP B RTET - LB
balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of these funds out of the MARBREU 2 BHRR/IE - KA
PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC AEEELHPRHEXRATERFE R
government. ZINEE HIR 1
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A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit ABOEEERLERS LK TAKE

period of 30 to 90 days to the Group. ZBRE— MR R30E90H -
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: BHRNFNRRIMMOT
Group
EL
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Below 90 days 0—90H 97,035 58,923
91 - 180 days 91 — 180 H 45 879
Over 180 days #8180 H 550 4,160
97,630 63,962
The carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair values, and are BORNRZEEERERATERE
denominated in the following currencies: WIATFIER RELL -
Group
e
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
HK dollar BT 12,075 10,303
Renminbi AR 13,022 17,335
US dollar e 72,533 36,324
97,630 63,962
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Share capital R A&

Number of
ordinary
shares of Share capital
HK$0.10 each nominal value
BREE B A E &
0108 T2 HK$’000
EREREE TET
Authorised: ETEMRA
At Ist July 2008, 30th June 2009 and 2010 RZZEZNFLA—H ZZTNEF 800,000,000 80,000
R_Z—ZF A=1H
Issued and fully paid: BERTRACRE :
At 30th June 2009 and 2010 RZZETNER 369,200,000 36,920
—E-TFXA=TH
Share premium BAFEE
HK$'000
FEx
At 30th June 2009 and 2010 RZBEZNFRZZF-TFA=TH 62,466
BRETE

Share option scheme

RE-_FT-_F+-_ARAIELRS
ZBRESE KRARZEFEAMA
ERER (BEATES) RERBAL
AR 2 A ([ AR ]) - MAFE
ATEZBRERZSMT -

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved and adopted on 5th December
2002, the Board of Directors of the Company may offer eligible employees
(including Executive Directors) rights to subscribe for shares of the Company
(the “Share Options”). Movements in the number of Share Options

outstanding during the year are as follows:

Number of Share Options

EREZE
2010 2009
At beginning of the year 4 1,500,000 23,800,000
Lapsed £ 1E — (22,300,000)
At end of the year FR 1,500,000 1,500,000
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Share option scheme (Cont'd)

Details of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme outstanding as
at 30th June 2010 and 30th June 2009 are as follows:

Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price
KRB H 38R TfEE
Employees {E B  [3th February 2008 |2th February 2014 HK$0.78

“EENE-_A+=H —TE-ME-_A+=-H 078ETT

Options granted are exercisable within a period of six years within which
there is a total vesting period of three years. Commencing from the first,
second and third anniversaries of the offer date of an option, the relevant
grantee may exercise up to 33%, 67% and 100% respectively of the shares
comprised in his or her option. The Group has no legal or constructive

obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The fair value of these options is to be expensed over the vesting period and
the amount recognised for the year was HK$92,000 (2009: HK$198,000).
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BRESE (F)

RZIZE-—ZTESA=+HRZZETNE
NAZTEREERENERDL 2 RTT
FERFERDT

Number of shares

subject to the options

BRETRERE
2010 2009
1,500,000 1,500,000
1,500,000 1,500,000

REBBREATNANFATE  MEHBE
BREARBRN=558 - BRERA
ARBREEOEHRNE— E-_RE
“BEEMERETEDAAERED
Z=t= BAZATERESZ—A
MBS B IR - RSB % TE N TE
BEENRSBOEERRE -

REBHE S EIRNEEERANEMEE
BREATESE R 000ET (ZEFH
£ : 198,000/ 7T) °



Share option scheme (Cont'd)

The fair values of options granted under the share option scheme determined

using the Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

Date of grant of share option

RBREL Y

Average fair value of share

options at date of grant

Significant inputs into the valuation model:

Exercise price

Share price at grant date
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate

Expected life of options

Expected dividend yield

R AR
2 FHATHE

BERAZERBARE
THE(E

KL BB RE
78 8% 1
EEBRF S X

TR 2 A

TR HAAR B [ 3R

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price

returns is based on the 6-year historical share price movement of the

Company prior to the option grant date.

BRESS (F)

ER-_BAANEEERABERERER
EtARL BB A FENT

I3th February 2008
—EEN\E-AT+Z=H

HK$0.277
0.277 &TT

HK$0.78
0.78 BT
HK$0.72
0.72 7T
66%
1.99%

6 years

6 F

6%

RREAREQGNEEZMAENE
HEBEE  REAE FERREN
Bt DMEtE -
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(@) Group

At Ist July 2009
Revaluation gains of property,
plant and equipment and leasehold
land and land use rights on transfer
1o investment properties-Gross
Deferred tax on revaluation gains of
property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights
on transfer to investment properties
Profit for the year
Employees share options scheme:
- value of employee services
Dividend paid
- 200972010 interim dividend paid
Acquisition of additional interest

in a subsidiary
At 30th June 2010

Representing:
Proposed 2009/2010
final dividend

Others
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Share option

reserve

BREGS

RZEENFLA-A

0% BERABARELHR
THEREERERENE Y
Efthn- 18

nx BERREREELHR
T EREERERANR L
EL R ok A

KEgEH
ERBREE -
-EERHKEE
XH-FEN/%F-F
ERRHME
KE-HBARZEMER

RZZ-FERA=1H

k%
BE-TTN/

“I-TERRERE
i

HK$'000

TER
92

384

Capital
reserve
(note (i))
EXGi
(& i)
HK$'000
TEr
408

408

Other reserves

Exchange

Revaluation  fluctuation
reserve reserve
EfiffE EXRBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tir TiEn
2115 42,445
2,602 —
(778) —

3939 42,445

Sub-total
It
HK$'000
TER
45,260

2,602

(778)

9

47,176

Retained
earnings
RE&EA
HK$'000
TRz
232,29

28,352

(3,692)

(848)

256,041

7,384
248,657

256,041

Total
a%
HK$'000
TEn
277,489

2,602

(778)
2835

9
(3,69)

(648)

303,217



(a) Group (Contd)

At Ist July 2008
Release on liquidation of a subsidiary
Loss for the year
Employees share options scheme:

- value of employee services

~ lapse of share options
2007/2008 final dividend paid

At 30th June 2009

Representing:
Proposed 2008/2009

final dividend
Others

Share option

reserve
BRERRE
HK$ 000
Thn
RZEZ/\EtA-A 6475
R-HBLALERED —
ﬁﬁ%h -
ESRRENE -
-EERBER 198
—%&%ﬂﬁ (6381
33+/23%)\
iEX%kE —
RZEENERA=TA 9
fi%:
Ba=3E)N/
“ETNEERERE
fh

a) KB (&

Other reserves

Capital
reserve Exchange
(note ())  Revaluation fluctuation
BN reserve reserve
(W) EREG EXRDERE
HK$:000 HK§'000 HK$000
Tén  TEr  TER
408 2115 42026
— — 419
408 2115 42445

Retained
Sub-total eamings
et RERR
HK$000 HK§'000
TEn  TER
51,04 250297
419 —
= (20,757)
198 =
(6381) 6,381
= (3,692)
45260 232,229
232,209
232,229
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Total
&%

HK$ 000
TER

301,321
419
(20757)

198

(3692)

277489



(b) Company

Other reserves

b
Contributed
surplus Share
(note (ii)) option Retained
BE4RH reserve Sub-total earnings Total
(BEEG)  BRERE It RERR RE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER TEn TEn
At Ist July 2009 R-_ZENFLA-A 62,511 292 62,803 5,898 68,701
Profit for the year RERH — — — 6,789 6,789
Employee share options scheme: EERRETE -
~ value of employee services -EERBKER - 9 9 - 9
2009/2010 interim dividend paid SRHZFEN/
“Z2-TERRBRE - - - (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2010 RZZ-FF A=+H 62,511 384 62,895 8,995 71,890
Representing; RE:
Proposed 2009/2010 2-ZFH/
final dividend “E-TEERERE 7384
Others Efty Lell

8,995
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Company (Contd)

At Ist July 2008

Loss for the year

Employee share options scheme:

—value of employee services
— lapse of share options
2007/2008 final dividend paid

At 30th June 2009

Representing:
Proposed 2008/2009
final dividend

Others

RZZEN\E+A—H
AEER
EEBRETE -
-EERBER
—BRER L
-2t/

“TR\FREARHRE

RZZTAERA=TH

K%
#3-330/

“ERNFRAHRS

Efty

Contributed
surplus
(note (i)

S HER
(B &E )
HK$'000
TEL

i

\

62511

62511

(b)

Other reserves

Hit e

Share
option
reserve
BRERR
HK$'000
TR

6,475

198
(6381)

292

ACIRG-))

Sub-total
it
HK$'000
Tt

68,986

Retained
earnings Total
RE RN e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
3,793 72,779
(584) (584)
— 198
6,381 —
(3,692) (3.692)
5898 68,701
5898
5898
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(b) Company (Contd)
Notes:

(i) Capital reserve of the Group of HK$408,000 (2009: HK$408,000)
represents the aggregate amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange
for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the

“Reorganisation”).

(i) Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited at the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued under the Reorganisation.
At Group level the contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of

reserves of the underlying subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if (i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.
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(ii)

ACIRG-))

X & B 2 B X # B K
408,000/ 7 (ZZZ fLEF : 408,000/
T DRELBREHERA A ERE
BEERHBERR-ANTERATF
REESEEA ([E4]) rETzRAT
BUARBATKERE AR 2 RAAER
BRE AR o

Anal 2B A - JINgai Hing
(International) Company Limited A&
HEMAHZEERREEARATR
BEAMBT 2 ROHBEME ZERE -
AEBEHRBRDERBAEENRE
DRI EBEHEN °

BEARE-NN-FRAE(BE
i) BRBRHUDKTRR KR
AEEHAENQFNKMREZHIES
ERDREREIBEBELINB A
& RMARBEEZNEREEERRA
MERE B ERED BTRAERND &
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Non-current borrowings

Long-term bank loans - secured

Less: Current portion of long-term bank loans

Obligations under finance leases
Less: Obligation under finance

lease — current portion

Current borrowings
Short-term bank loans - secured
Trust receipt loans - secured
Bank advances for discounted bills (note 23)

Current portion of long-term bank loans

Obligations under finance

leases - current portion

Total borrowings

FRBEE
RBRTER-FHEF
W RERITER - AN

MEMERHE
o mEREEE -

mEEE
RHRTER-AHR
EREREEN - FHEA
RITRRAREBR (M 23)
RYRTER-NHI 2

MEMEREE-HED

Group

£

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
20,400 —
(4,800) —
15,600 —
693 2,740
(458) (2,047)
235 693
15,835 693
30,305 40,987
199,541 55,469
2,285 2515
4,800 —
236,931 98971
458 2,047
237,389 101,018
253,224 101,711
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The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values, AEEBRECEAEEEATERS -
and is denominated in the following currencies: WIATIERRELL -
Group
%8
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
HK dollar BT 207,692 58,209
Renminbi AR 19,330 30,242
US dollar e 26,202 13,260
253,224 101,711
At 30th June 2010, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable RZZE-ZFESA=+H XEEMNR
within five years and are repayable as follows: TEFHERLFRER 50T :

Bank borrowings

RITEE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Within | year —FR 236,931 98,971
Between | to 2 years —FEMF 4,800 —
Between 2 to 5 years MEERF 10,800 —
252,531 98971
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The Group's finance lease obligations are analysed as follows:

Total minimum lease payments RIEHEERE

Within | year —FRQ

Between | to 2 years —EEMF

Between 2 to 5 years MEERF

Future finance charges on finance leases MEMEZ RKRIBER

Present value of obligations under finance leases MERET T 2 RE

The present value of obligations under finance leases is as follows:

Within | year —FR
Between | to 2 years —FEMF
Between 2 to 5 years MEERF

AEBZRMEBEEEATOT :

Finance lease obligations

RMEMERE
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER THET
473 2,098
236 473
— 236
709 2,807
(16) (67)
693 2,740

REREEREHENT :

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
458 2,047

235 459

— 234

693 2,740
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The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

— at fixed rates

— at floating rates

Obligations under finance leases BIEHEE{E

Trust receipt loans ERREER
Short-term and RH kR
long-term bank loans RITEHN
Bank advances for #RIT
discounted bills BREERN

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (note

16), leasehold land and land use rights (note 17) and investment properties

(note 18) of the Group.

The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted for
as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bills receivable and the related
proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills

receivables (note 23) and short-term borrowings respectively at the balance

sheet date.
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— [EEH =

HKD

3.00%
1.99%

1.78%

2010
RMB
AR®

6.31%

5.00%

RNEERBRAAREZEREMERE
BHER K METHENT -

Group
%
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
232,131 98971
21,093 2,740
253,224 101,711
2009
HKD RMB usb
BT ARE e
3.11% — —
1.83% = =
— 6.54% 2.20%
— 2.02% —

ROTEFAREBEL S ONE - BB R
(KtsE16) ~ HE L R i FAHE
(B&E17) R Em* (HE18) BEM -

TERBLHARBERR TRITME
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬁﬁ N
ERERAUERRZREREHL
H AMBRORBERAREZESE
W R B R R (F15E23) G HE R -



Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary differences BEEMGRIFERARGEEAEEAKE

under the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted ELEmAORENEEERERES
by the balance sheet date. iE -
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable EEEEARTRNERENERESR
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the RERBEERE  BETEMEHIR
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following R — BT B - BRI EEMEHEE
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance HEEEEEE A ABERHEER
sheet: THEEREERBRATIER :
Group
58
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Deferred tax assets BEENIBE E (4,486) (8,386)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREER 5,241 4,155
755 4231
The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: BERELHMEHEENFLHMT -
Group
£
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
At beginning of the year ) (4,231) (2,938)
Charged to equity IR 778 —
Charged/(credited) to consolidated income T WERNR (FTA)
statement (note 10) (F$7E 10) 4,208 (1,293)
At end of the year FR 755 (4,231
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The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without FREEHEEERAE 228 (HE—
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax BB R SR E R T

jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities: EXEHARE

Fair value gains on

investment properties Accelerated tax depreciation Total

RENZLTERS MERBHE AR
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TET TER TET TER TET

At beginning of the year F1 2,537 2,420 1,679 1,039 4216 3459
Charged to equity T o R 778 — — — 778 —
Charged to income ElamE
statement ks 309 [17 367 640 676 757
Transfer 28 (218) — 218 — — —
At end of the year ES 3,406 2,537 2,264 1,679 5,670 4216
Deferred tax assets: BREHRIBRE -
Provisions Tax losses Decelerated tax depreciation Total
B REER AERKTE 4%
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

HK§'000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKSO0D  HK$'000  HKSO000  HK$000  HK$O00
téxr  TEL  TEx  TEn  fEx  TEr  TEn  TAR

At beginning of the year E) 245 2 2972 1,303 3,030 237 8447 6,397
(Charged)/credited to sk

income statement (1R) /3A (299) (477) (2722) 1,669 (511 858 (3532) 2050
At end of the year EX 1,946 245 250 297 2719 3030 4915 8447
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. At 30th June 2010, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be
carried forward against future taxable income amounted to HK$63,844,000
(2009: HK$46,272,000). These tax losses have no expiry date except that
HK$7,355,000 (2009: HK$4,607,000) will expire from 2013 to 2015. The
potential deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which have not
been recognised amounted to HK$10,934,000 (2009: HK$7,801,000).

As at 30th June 2010, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to profits earned by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$35,062,000 (2009: HK$14,000,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

At 30th June 2010 and 2009, the Company had no material deferred tax assets

or liabilities.

RAEBNRBERMBRANETHER
BEERNEB BB & ﬁ‘J £ iR
ARERBANERNLS - RZF—
TEAA=TH: m%lﬂmﬂwﬁmﬁ?
MEHARERT B ZNBHBEER
63,844,000 T (Z T T L &
46,272,000 ) BARBELFMEH A E
10,934,000 &= (Z T T N &
7,801,00087T) - I—E—=FZFZ_F
—REF A% E 18 R7,355,0008 7T
(ZZZNF : 4,607,00087T) °

RZE-ZEXA=+H A£ELX
SETHEMNBARZE RIS £
35,062,0008 T (Z T T L &
14,000,000 ) 2 B ZHEERLRE
B EASEZHZEEREEL
BOERE  UARRATRZBRASTER
RO e -

— = 7j‘|4¢& fﬁ/\ﬁ —I_
E*ZIK TIEEK ERBEELER

&
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Operating profit/(loss)
Adjustments for:
— Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
— Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights
— Amortisation of intangible assets
— Unrealised fair value loss on derivative
financial instruments held for trading
— Fair value gains on investment properties
— Share-based compensation expenses
— Loss on liquidation of a subsidiary
— (Reversal of)/provision for impairment
of receivables
— Provision for impairment
of inventories
— Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets
— Write back of other payables
— Impairment of intangible assets
Changes in working capital:
— Inventories
—Trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, prepayments and deposits
—Trade payables, other payables and

deposits received and accruals

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
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~EREENE
EESE
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—BEIRERRERRE
HiEW - BRRRES
—EIRMNK - HtENRK
Bl kERER

mEEY (R /EEZBS

2010
HK$°000
TET

51,178

14,514

400

544
400

637

(1,422)

92

(287)

654

160

(2,000)

2,000

(122,895)

(81,565)

39,532

(98,058)

Group
2009
HK$'000
TET

(5,254)

13,128

(122)

448
800

4802

(710)
198
419
874

3,036

[,150

44,721

129,851

(45,635)

147,706



In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of property, plant and

equipment comprise:

Net book amount (note 16)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (note 8)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

(@)

EmEE (st 16)
HEME BEIKRE
2 (BB) /WxE (s 8)
HEME BEK
REBFTER

Capital commitments

At 30th June 2010, the Group had the following capital commitments for
addition of property, plant and equipment:

EREERED
ERAERBE ()

Authorised but not contracted for

Contracted but not provided for (note)

Note:

In June 2009, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire certain land and
buildings in Hong Kong from an independent third party at a cash consideration
of HK$29,000,000. As at 30th June 2009, the unpaid amount totalling
HK$26,100,000 had been included in the above as capital commitments.

EHEREXRA  HEVE BERR

EHRTE R B -
2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000
TERT TET
650 170
(400) 122
250 292

(a) BRI

R-T-ZFEXA=TH  T&H
BRENE  BERREIENAE

LaNE
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
7,385 32,656
7,385 32,656

MisE -

RZZETNGEAR  AEEEBUE=
AETHE - AR 21K (829,000,0007%
THE—REENE -N_TTIF
NAZTH - K2 £26,100,000%
TLEBEER L2 BRAEER -
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(b) Commitment under operating leases

As at 30th June 2010, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings as follows:

Not later than one year —FR

|m
%

Later than one year and —FREEBNESF
not later than five years

Later than five years hFE

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The
remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares
of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the

Company.

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group
and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in note |5 to the

financial statements.

The Directors are of the opinion that no other material related party

transactions had been undertaken by the Group during the year.

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.
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(b) EEHEARE

RZFE-ZEXA=1RH  £~5&E
AR TH BB BH T RE
FZAAHELEHEZ RRZED
MERK :

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
8,972 7250
1,845 6,908

— 207
10,817 14,365

A& B A Good Benefit Limited (£ 1 B
RABESEMKL AR E - HEA
ARAIBAZET=8=IRHE  H&z
BAZHT A AB+tREREZRS -
Good Benefit Limited®E & £ A 22 i 4
AARAIZBAEZTELHE o

ARAMBEEHRRALEEZEE
EBRAE  EHAFMNERGA UM BER
RHME15HE -

ESRRARERAFENYESEH
HEABREALRS -

EERAADBRKER A AGood
Benefit Limited (E & B R X BB &
L ZAR]) e



The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2010:

Name

L

Ngai Hing (International)
Company Limited
(note b) (PiizE b)

Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Ltd.

REREEBRH
BERAE

Hong Kong Colour
Technology Limited

BABREXERAT

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited
RETRENARRA

Place of

incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal

entity
AR AR i B
R*EANER

British Virgin Islands
RERUES

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
IEBELR

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BB

Issued and

fully paid

up share capital/
registered capital
ERTR
BRRA/EMER

US$100
100 & 7T

HK$93,200,000
93,200,000 7T

500,000
ordinary shares
of HK$ | each
500,000 % 3 ik
BR1ET

2,000,000
ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
2,000,000 % @&
BRI1ET

RZZE-—ZFXA=1TH ARAIZE

ZMBRAMT :

Principal activities

TEXEHR

Investment holding

REER

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERHEEEAR
BB AR

Manufacture and trading of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
HERBEBRECHR
BB AMKE S

Manufacture of
engineering plastic
products
BETHE
BREM
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Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

ARERE
ZERBRAES L
100

100

100

762



Name

=L

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited

REZBRMARDA

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials (Hong Kong)
Limited

REBBRK ()
BERRA

Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co,, Ltd.

LBREBBRH
BERRA

Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co,, Ltd.

EERABBRH
ARAR

@ Annual Report FE {4 09/ 10

Place of
incorporation/

operation and

Issued and

fully paid

*kind of legal up share capital/
entity registered capital
AR R R BEBRTR
R*EANEH MERE/ZMER
Hong Kong 1,000
B ordinary shares of
HK$!1 each

1,000 &R

B 1ET

500,000

non-voting deferred

shares of HK$ I each (note ¢)

500,000 &k Z1#

BB BT

(FfzEc)

Hong Kong 500,000
5 ordinary shares of
HKS$ | each

500,000 @B ER1ET

The PRC HK$34,400,000
* wholly foreign 34,400,000 # 7T

-owned enterprise
hE
*HEBELE
The PRC

* wholly foreign
-owned enterprise
hE
POEEELE

HK$10,500,000
10,500,000 & 7T

Principal activities

FEEK

Investment holding and
property holding
REERR
BRENE

Trading of plastic materials

EEZBRM

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
RERHEREH
REGAKE S

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERHEEEH
k&GRS

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

AREHE
ZERRAED L
100

100

100

100



Name

&%

NHH Coltec Limited
REEZHARRAA

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd.
RETRER
(L&) ERR7A

Tsing Tao Ngai Hing
Trading Co. Ltd

BEERERE
BRAT

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
(Hong Kong) Limited

RETRER (BR)
BERAE

Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials Co. Ltd

EFREBTERBRE
BRRA

Place of

incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal

entity
AR AR i B
R*EANEE

Hong Kong
B

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
BB ELE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
HE
*IEBELE

Hong Kong
Bk

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
P E
OEBELRE

Issued and

fully paid

up share capital/
registered capital
ERTR
BERE/ZMER
5,000

ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

5,000 Ei@MK

B 1A

US$200,000
200,000 & 7T

US$100,000
100,000 %7

1,000,000

ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
1,000,000 & MKk
BR1ET

US$200,000
200,000 £ 7T

Principal activities

FEEK

Manufacture and sale of
plastic products
RER
HELBEM

Trading of engineering
plastic products

BETREBEM

Trading of colorants and
compounded plastic resins
EEEGH
k&G & ki

Trading of engineering
plastic products

EETREBEM

Manufacture and sale of
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BERHERCHR
EEAMKE S
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percentage of
equity held by
the Company
ADRAFE

ZEBRBRABD L

100

762

100

762

100



Name

=L

Guangzhou Ngai Sog
Hing Trading Co. Ltd

BEMNTRERL S
BRAH

Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing
Trading Co. Ltd

LERBRER
RHEEERAT

NHH Biodegradable Plastics
Company Limited
BRERREMBERDA

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Dongguan) Co,, Ltd.
RERTTREH
BERAE

Shanghai Coltec Plastic
Trading Co. Ltd

LTEBRZRR
BZBRAA
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Place of

incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal

entity
Gy RV -$:.
R*EANEH

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
HE
OEBEELE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
hE
IEBEELR

Hong Kong
BE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
HE
*OEBELE

The PRC
* wholly foreign

-owned enterprise
P
OEBELRE

Issued and
fully paid
up share capital/

registered capital
BEBRTR
MERE/ZMER

RMB5,000,000
5,000,000 A R B

US$400,000
400,000 £ 7T

10,000

ordinary shares of
HK$ ! each
10,000 & i@ A%
BRI1BT

HK$5,200,000
5,200,000 7T

US$40,000
40,000 £ 7T

Principal activities

FEEK

Trading of plastic materials

EEZBRH

Trading of plastic materials

EEZBRH

Manufacture and sale of
biodegradable plastic
materials

SERHE
RREB R

Trading of engineering
plastic products
EETREBEM

Trading of colorants and
compounded plastic resins
BEEBAL

BB AR

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company
ARRAFE

ZBEBRREEDL

100

100

85

762

100



Name

=L

Dongguan Coltec Plastic
Trading Co. Ltd

Place of

incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal

entity
AL AR R
R*EANEE

The PRC

* wholly foreign

Issued and
fully paid
up share capital/

registered capital
EBTR
BERE/ZMER

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 A T

Principal activities

FEXR

Trading of colorants and
compounded plastic resins
EEEOHL
BB A KBS

Pirat

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company
ARARFE

2EBRFED L

100

REBAZEH -owned enterprise
BEHERAA g
OEBERE
Notes:
(@) All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability

companies. All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned

enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by
the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the
Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or
surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or
attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of

such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the
holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group.To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

MEREERRBRELESEMALL
WEBRARHAEREMLAF - HERS
BRI ZHBRARLRIBBELE -

FrE L5z £ ZH B2 AKNgai Hing
(International) Company Limitedd 7%
NAIEERKAIN AKX RRBERS
ﬁ °

REZBRABRAA ([RA]) BRR
BETBRNDZHAABR2ERE 28
MERBBED K MEERERAELZ
BEEBRMUBBRERRAGREXHE
BRARRAEINE LRE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR & BRBAETEERFE
BRERHHEARKATBEZSRN 2
Mg -

ERIMEERAREAFEREBNE
EYEABRAESBEEFEC T B
DRARAWBAR - EERRDHT
EMBRRAZ#BEE<ERBRT
Ko
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Five Year Financial Summary
AFERBGHEE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years AEERNBETEVBFREEF2RE  BE

are as follows: ReaEwT:
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET TET TET TET

Results E4
Profit/(loss) attributable A&

to equity holders of wHl, (E8)

the Company 28,352 (20,757) 24,193 14,975 7,082
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Total assets EERE 812,944 592,040 764431 712,049 649,568
Total liabilities BfERE (389,510) (195.817) (346,327) (352,984) (301,320)
Non-controlling interests el (20,831) (19,348) (17,397) (7,444) (11,764)
Capital and reserves NAERR R

attributable to the W& A T A

Company's equity holders 402,603 376,875 400,707 351,621 336,484
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited

Hong Kong Colour Technology Limited
NHH Coltec Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited

NHH Biodegradable Plastics Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre
10 Wo Shing Street

Fotan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

|7 Dai Fu Street

Tai Po Industrial Estate

Tai Po, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
Fax: (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

Dongguan Factory:

Chi Ling Industrial Zone, Hou Jie Town
Dongguan City

Guangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-8558 8755 Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-8558 1756

Guangzhou Office:

A1806 Center Plaza

No. 163 Linhe Road West

Tianhe District

Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 20-3831 0226 Zip : 510620
Fax: (86) 20-3831 0223

Company E)\irsjc*to%y
A T8

RETERAF
(REREZMELZ ERAA)
REBBREH (FR)RRLF
BReEXFRAF
REEERRAF
RAIRENERADT
RETRER (FR)ARLXA
RERRENARQT

BERPEE

RN

REAI0%
BEIEHOEE

T ih 1 (852) 2693 1663

fBE : (852) 2694 0877

A4k + http://www.nhh.com.hk
BT ¢ info@nhh.com.hk

BRI

HRAE

RIB T

REHITH

E3E ¢ (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
BE : (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

RERIL

I AR AME

REMm

BHEFEIXRE

T ih 1 (86) 769-8558 8755 EHARSE : 523940
BHE : (86) 769-8558 1756

BMNRER

REARENE

BN

K&

MRAEEBE 1 635%

R B R [E 5 A 1806

EiE ¢ (86) 20-3831 0226 BHARSR 510620
BE : (86) 20-3831 0223
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Company Directory
ATEME

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, 16th Floor

Zhao Feng Universe Building

No.1800 Zhongshan West Road
Shanghai

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200235
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.

Qingpu Industrial Zone

Shanghai

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201700
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:
Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone

Jiaozhou, ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao

The People's Republic of China
Tel: (86) 532-8727 3100 Zip: 266300
Fax: (86) 532-8727 3110

Chengdu Office:

2nd Floor, Huaxia Building

No.3 North Jianshe Road Section 3
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026  Zip: 610051
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

I/F, J-7 Building, Yongquan Industrial Park,
Guankou Town, Jimei District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 592-6093211  Zip: 361023
Fax: (86) 592-6093600
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LERER

R AR HME

Lgm

A 1L B 18005

KERKAE

| 612 EFE

FiE ¢ (86) 21-6440 0997 EEURSE ¢ 200235
fBE : (86) 21-6440 0977

g
i AR AME
Lgm
ERIEER

R EKB8100%%
EiE ¢ (86) 21-6921 3333 BHRSR : 201700
BE : (86) 21-6921 5555

EERIL

I AR AME

EEBMNEERMAER

AR BN ERIXER

T &% ¢ (86) 532-8727 3100 EEURSE 1 266300
fBE : (86) 532-8727 3110

RERER

RE AR HME

M)l BT

BHRIEE=E=%

EEAEZR#

F 1% : (86) 28-8328 5026 BHRHE - 610051
BE : (86) 28-8328 5126

BRI

I AR AME

BEAEMT

EXEEAE

BRIER-TBE (118)

B (86) 592-6093211 BHRSE : 361023
BE : (86) 592-6093600
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Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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